
 

Page 1 of 3 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Council Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee  

 

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive  
Thursday, 7 
November 2013  
at 10.00 am 

Epsom Town Hall, The 
Parade, Epsom, 
Surrey, KT18 5BY 
 

Bryan Searle, Jisa Prasannan 
or Andrew Spragg 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 8541 9019 or 020 
8213 2673 
 
bryans@surreycc.gov.uk or 
jisa.prasannan@surreycc.gov.uk 
or 
andrew.spragg@surreycc.gov.uk 

David McNulty 
 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9068, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
bryans@surreycc.gov.uk or jisa.prasannan@surreycc.gov.uk or 
andrew.spragg@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Bryan Searle, Jisa 
Prasannan or Andrew Spragg on 020 8541 9019 or 020 8213 2673. 

 

 
Members 

Mr Nick Skellett CBE (Chairman), Mr Eber A Kington (Vice-Chairman), Mr Mark Brett-Warburton, 
Mr Stephen Cooksey, Dr Zully Grant-Duff, Mr Chris Townsend, Mrs Hazel Watson, Mr David 
Ivison, Mr Adrian Page, Mrs Denise Saliagopoulos, Mrs Victoria Young, Mr Bill Chapman, Mr 
Bob Gardner, Mr David Harmer and Mr Keith Witham 
 

Ex Officio Members: 
Mr David Munro (Chairman of the County Council) and Mrs Sally Ann B Marks (Vice Chairman 
of the County Council) 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
The Committee is responsible for the following areas: 

Performance, finance and risk monitoring for 
all Council services 

HR and Organisational Development 

Budget strategy/Financial Management IMT 
Improvement Programme, Productivity and 
Efficiency 

Procurement 

Equalities and Diversity Other support functions 
Corporate Performance Management Risk Management 
Corporate and Community Planning Europe 
Property Communications 
Contingency Planning Public Value Review programme and process  



 
Page 2 of 3 

PART 1 
IN PUBLIC 

 
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

 
 

 

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 3 OCTOBER 2013 
 
To agree the minutes as a true record of the meeting. 
 

(Pages 1 
- 8) 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from 
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting. 
 
Notes: 

• In line with the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) 
Regulations 2012, declarations may relate to the interest of the 
member, or the member’s spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom the member is living as husband or wife, or a person with whom 
the member is living as if they were civil partners and the member is 
aware they have the interest. 

• Members need only disclose interests not currently listed on the 
Register of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests. 

• Members must notify the Monitoring Officer of any interests disclosed at 
the meeting so they may be added to the Register. 

• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item where 
they have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

 

4  QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
To receive any questions or petitions. 
 
Notes: 
1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days 

before the meeting (1 November 2013). 
2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (31 

October 2013). 
3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no 

petitions have been received. 
 

 

5  RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 
SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
Recommendations were made to Cabinet regarding the Council’s 
approach to digital by default, following a meeting of the Council Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee on 3 October. A response was given at the Cabinet 
meeting on 22 October 2013. 
 

(Pages 9 
- 10) 

6  RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee is asked to monitor progress on the implementation of 
recommendations from previous meetings, and to review its Forward Work 
Programme. 
 

(Pages 
11 - 18) 



 
Page 3 of 3 

7  BUDGET MONITORING - SEPTEMBER 2013 
 
Purpose of report: Scrutiny of Services and Budgets 
 
This report presents the revenue and capital budget monitoring up-date for 
September 2013 with projected year-end outturn. 
 

(Pages 
19 - 54) 

8  IMPROVING STAFF MORALE AND WELLBEING 
 
Purpose of report: Policy Development and Review 
 
The purpose of this report is to understand how we can find out how staff 
are feeling and what everyone can do to improve staff morale. The 
activities listed in this summary report are being developed as part of our 
People Strategy 2013 – 2018. The recently refreshed strategy emphasises 
the ways we are nurturing, supporting and equipping our people to meet 
the council’s vision to deliver great value for Surrey residents. 
 

(Pages 
55 - 58) 

9  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Committee will be held at 10.30am on 4 
December 2013. 
 

 

 
 

David McNulty 
Chief Executive 

Published: Wednesday, 30 October 2013 
 
 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 
Use of mobile technology (mobiles, BlackBerries, etc.) in meetings can: 
 

• Interfere with the PA and Induction Loop systems 

• Distract other people 

• Interrupt presentations and debates 

• Mean that you miss a key part of the discussion 
 
Please switch off your mobile phone/BlackBerry for the duration of the meeting.  If you 
wish to keep your mobile or BlackBerry switched on during the meeting for genuine personal 
reasons, ensure that you receive permission from the Chairman prior to the start of the 
meeting and set the device to silent mode. 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 7 

MINUTES of the meeting of the COUNCIL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE held at 10.30 am on 3 October 2013 at Ashcombe Suite, 
County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on 
Thursday, 7 November 2013. 
 
Members: 
 
* Mr Nick Skellett CBE (Chairman) 
* Mr Eber A Kington (Vice-Chairman) 
* Mr Mark Brett-Warburton 
* Mr Bill Chapman 
A  Mr Stephen Cooksey 
* Mr Bob Gardner 
* Dr Zully Grant-Duff 
* Mr David Harmer 
* Mr David Ivison 
* Mr Adrian Page 
* Mrs Denise Saliagopoulos 
* Mr Chris Townsend 
* Mrs Hazel Watson 
* Mr Keith Witham 
* Mrs Victoria Young 
 
Ex-officio Members: 
 
  Mr David Munro, Chairman of the County Council 
  Mrs Sally Ann B Marks, Vice Chairman of the County Council 
 
Substitute Members: 
 Mrs Fiona White 
 
Present: 
 
 Mr Peter Martin, Deputy Leader 

  
 

* = present 
 

67/13 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1] 
 
Apologies were received from Stephen Cooksey. Fiona White attended as a 
substitute. 
 

68/13 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 12 SEPTEMBER 2013  [Item 2] 
 
An amendment was made to the first line of page 4 of the minutes to read, 
“commented that significant progress had been made to identify...”. Subject to 
this amendment, the minutes were agreed as an accurate record of the 
meeting. 
 

69/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 

2

Item 2

Page 1



 

Page 2 of 7 

 
70/13 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  [Item 4] 

 
There were no questions or petitions to report. 
 

71/13 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 
SELECT COMMITTEE  [Item 5] 
 
There were no referrals made to Cabinet at the last meeting so there were no 
responses to report. 
 

72/13 DIGITAL BY DEFAULT  [Item 6] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses:  
Paul Brocklehurst, Head of Information Management and Technology (IMT) 
Lucie Glenday, Programme Director for Superfast Broadband 
Mark Irons, Head of Customer Services 
Nigel Lewis, Chair of Age Action Alliance Digital Inclusion Group 
 
Peter Martin, Deputy Leader of the Council 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Committee was given a brief outline of the national context in 
relation to a digital by default approach. It was commented that central 
Government was expecting to make large efficiency savings as a 
result of adopting a digital by default approach; however, the view was 
expressed by officers that these savings would not all be achievable. 
Members also challenged the estimated cost-per-transaction 
reductions made by moving to digital services, as it was felt that this 
failed to account for the process and cost of staff time. The Committee 
highlighted the need to consider the national picture in relation to 
digital services, as it would inform residents’ expectations and views. 
 

2. The Committee was informed that a digital approach could be viewed 
as not simply a move to put more transactional services online, but as 
a way of streamlining back office functions and processes. It was 
highlighted that this could be supported through a more intuitive 
approach to procurement, ending an over-reliance on IT suppliers, 
particularly where business processes were being made to fit the 
technology procured.  
 

3. The Committee was informed that central Government was in the 
process of developing a new Digital Inclusion strategy and identifying 
a supplier for assisted digital; this was where the service user received 
additional support in order to access digital services. It was highlighted 
by witnesses that there were a number of factors to consider when 
addressing issues around digital inclusion. These included age-related 
barriers; some forms of disability; and those who would be unwilling to 
use online or digital services. The Committee expressed concerns 
about the requirement to apply for Universal Credit online, and how 
this could potentially disadvantage vulnerable claimants. It was 

2

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 7 

suggested that this was an area of exploration for the Committee’s 
Welfare Reform Task Group.  
 

4. The Committee raised a number of questions in relation to 
accessibility and what role it played in ensuring the Council was 
sufficiently encouraging people to use digital services. It was 
highlighted that work was being undertaken alongside the delivery of 
the Superfast Broadband project to ensure that residents were given 
the opportunity to develop their digital skills. Witnesses commented 
that there was a need to consider where continuing support 
arrangements might be required for those accessing digital services. 
The Committee was told that there was work being undertaken by the 
Council to identify which services, such as Adult Social Care or Meals-
on-wheels, could be used to facilitate ongoing support arrangements 
within residents’ homes. It was also highlighted that the Council was 
supporting Carers UK in making a bid to the National Lottery to assist 
carers in accessing online services. 
 

5. The Committee was informed that the Council did not have an over-
arching digital strategy, as IMT worked to meet the requirements of 
individual directorate and service strategies. Officers commented that 
different support was aligned according to individual service needs. 
The Committee was told that each directorate had a technology board, 
comprised of officers from across services and IMT, which met 
regularly to identify their needs and requirements. 
 

6. The Committee was informed that Customer Services viewed its 
approach to service delivery as based primarily around customer 
needs. It was highlighted that the Council’s website was in the process 
of being refreshed, with the majority of test users commenting that 
they preferred the redesign. The Committee was told that the redesign 
had been informed by the Society of IT Managers (SocITM) standards. 
These had led to new customer feedback tools and a “find my nearest” 
functionality was being introduced. 
 

7. The Committee was told that the Customer Service Excellence 
programme was working with individual services to take a holistic 
approach to how they improve their delivery and access to information. 
It was highlighted that this work had been undertaken initially with 
Highways, as this was an area that received a significant number of 
customer complaints. The Committee was informed that the 
introduction of Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system 
was hoped to improve the co-ordination of back office functions and 
how effectively queries were resolved. 
 

8. Members questioned where the overarching responsibility for the 
Council’s website lay. It was confirmed that the website was hosted by 
Customer Services, but that individual services took responsibility for 
the content of their pages. It was highlighted that there were 
approximately 8,000 pages and that the new customer feedback tools 
would be able to link feedback with specific pages, thereby identifying 
areas for improvement or good practice. 
 

9. Officers highlighted the role of the Continual Improvement Board in 
ensuring that directorates were joining up areas of work at a corporate 

2

Page 3



 

Page 4 of 7 

leadership level. It was commented that there were some areas where 
it was deemed unnecessary or inappropriate to join up digital 
platforms.  
 

10. Officers confirmed that they had visited a number of local authorities to 
discuss various digital approaches; amongst them were Hounslow, 
Oxfordshire and Kingston. The view was expressed by officers that 
Hounslow’s approach could be considered particularly well-suited to a 
unitary authority. Members stressed the importance of ensuring that 
residents were receiving a coherent online experience, where digital 
services operated in a consistent and joined-up way. The work of 
Government Digital Services to develop consistent open standards 
across departments was highlighted as an example of this.  
 

11. The Committee queried whether there was a Cabinet Member 
specifically tasked with the responsibility of digital services, and 
whether a single digital strategy had been considered. The Committee 
was informed that the Cabinet jointly recognised the role of digital 
technology in creating greater efficiencies. The Superfast Broadband 
project and the number of School Admissions applications being made 
online were highlighted as particular areas of success in this area. It 
was commented that a digital approach was pursued wherever it was 
deemed appropriate. 
 

12.  The Committee sought reassurances around the data security 
principles, and were informed that the County Council used the 
Government Connect (GCSX) network, which complies with national 
security standards. 
 

13. The Committee asked what potential barriers there were for expanding 
digital services. It was highlighted that there was a need to prioritise 
high-volume transactions, such as online library renewals, and ensure 
these were working effectively before encouraging lower volume 
transactions to increase. It was also highlighted that factors such as 
capacity and how well-equipped services were for changes to digital 
approaches were also considerations.  

 
Recommendations: 
 

a) That the Cabinet considers developing a high-level strategy document 
to help guide its approach to the digital delivery of both back-office and 
front-line services. 
 

Action by: Cabinet 
 

b) That consideration be given to identifying a Cabinet Member to take 
lead responsibility for the Council’s overall approach to the digital 
delivery of services. 
 

Action by: Cabinet 
 

c) That the Welfare Reform Task Group investigates the impact on users 
of the requirement for Universal Credit applications to be made online. 
 

Action by: Welfare Reform Task Group 

2

Page 4



 

Page 5 of 7 

 
d) That the Committee receives a further report at its meeting in 

December 2013, summarising services already delivered digitally by 
the Council, and outlining initiatives in place or proposed to ensure a 
co-ordinated approach. 
 

Action by: Head of IMT/Head of Customer Services 
 
Actions/further information to be provided: 
 
None. 
 
Committee Next Steps: 
 
None. 
 
 

73/13 BUDGET MONITORING: AUGUST 2013  [Item 7] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: Paul Carey-Kent,  
Kevin Kilburn, Chief Finance Officer 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. A summary of the discussion held at the Council Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee’s Performance & Finance Sub-Group was shared with the 
Committee. The Performance & Finance Sub-Group considered the 
August 2013 budget monitoring report at its meeting on Monday 30 
September 2013 and identified the following issues for further 
discussion by the Committee: 
 
• Uncertainties relating to the revenue budget, in particular the 
likelihood of achieving the savings target for social capital in Adult 
Social Care in the current financial year (paragraph 10 on page 38). 
 
• Further information was requested about the reasons behind the 
increase in the number of IT users in the Council from 7,700 in 
2011/12 to just under 10,000 this year (paragraph 35 on page 43), and 
whether better planning could have prevented this becoming a budget 
pressure in the current year. 
 
• Information was requested about the number of the total staff 
vacancies as at 31 August 2013 (683) which were filled by temporary 
staff (page 48). 
 

2. The Sub-Group also stressed the need for Select Committees and the 
Council Overview & Scrutiny Committee to be provided with sufficient 
detail of potential savings identified by the Cabinet to enable them to 
provide effective challenge and robust advice.  This was particularly 
crucial if the Council Overview & Scrutiny Committee was to fulfil its 
role of reviewing the Council’s overall position recommending any re-
allocation of funds from one directorate to another. 
 

2

Page 5



 

Page 6 of 7 

3. The Committee commented that there were still significant concerns 
with regards to the likelihood of Adult Social Care meeting its 2013/14 
savings. Members were informed that the Adult Social Care Select 
Committee had made two recommendations to Cabinet with regards to 
this. Members expressed concerns that the budget-setting process 
had allocated such a significant saving to social capital measures.  
 

4. Officers commented that the expectation had been that there would be 
some slippage in the savings targets related to social capital, and that 
Whole Systems funding had been set aside to meet any shortfall. It 
was highlighted that no request was to be made to draw down this 
funding, until the potential to make these savings within the financial 
year had been assessed. The Committee was informed that any use 
of this funding would have to be done in consultation with the health 
service. Officers informed the Committee that they anticipated the 
measures related to social capital would begin to show an impact by 
the September 2013 budget monitoring stage. 
 

5. The Committee asked for clarification regarding the usage of Whole 
Systems funding. Officers commented that this was money the NHS 
was required to allocate to the local authority, with the intention of 
offsetting an increase in demand on acute services in the health 
service, through preventative work. It was highlighted that other local 
authorities had used the funding to met shortfalls in their budgets. 
 

6. Officers highlighted that the average cost per service user in Adult 
Social Care was coming down, and that the level of demand had 
remained consistent this year. Members were informed that future 
savings identified in the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) had 
been made anticipating increased demand. 
 

7. The Committee queried whether £3.3 million of funding for sexual 
health services for Public Health that had been delegated to the 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) in error was recoverable. 
Officers confirmed that there were ongoing discussions with the CCGs 
in order to claim back this funding. It was clarified that sexual health 
services were being provided, but that the absence of funding was 
preventing new initiatives from beginning. 
 

8. The Committee was informed that a budget pressure in relation to an 
increase in IT users was result of actions identified within the MTFP to 
improve efficiencies within services. Officers commented that they 
confident that the spend could be contained within the IMT budget. 
The Committee asked for further information with regards to why this 
increase had not been anticipated within the business planning for the 
current financial year. 
 

9. The Committee asked for further details on the savings planned for the 
next financial year. It was confirmed that these would be 
communicated as part of the ongoing business planning process in the 
coming few months.  
 

10. Members asked for further details regarding the usage of the Ranger 
House, the Parkside House, and Egham purchases. It was confirmed 
this would be circulated to the Committee following the meeting. 

2

Page 6



 

Page 7 of 7 

Recommendations: 
 
None. 
 
Actions/further information to be provided: 
 
Information was requested to address the second and third bullet-points from 
the Sub-Group report. 
 
Officers to provide details on the following: 

• IMT Business Planning and the increase in the number of IT users 

• The usage of the Ranger House, the Parkside House, and Egham 
purchases. 

 
Committee Next Steps: 
 
None. 
 
 

74/13 RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
[Item 8] 
 
Declarations of interest: None. 
 
Witnesses: None. 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Committee noted its recommendation tracker and forward work 
programme. Members were informed that the Welfare Reform Task 
Group had agreed its terms of reference, which would be circulated to 
the Committee for comment. 

 
Recommendations: 
 
None. 
 
Actions/further information to be provided: 
 
None. 
 
Committee Next Steps: 
 
None. 
 

75/13 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 9] 
 
The Committee noted that its next meeting would be held at 10am on 7 
November 2013. The Chairman asked Members to note that this meeting 
would be held at Epsom Town Hall. 
 
 
Meeting ended at: 1.07 am 
______________________________________________________________ 
 Chairman 

2

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

2

Page 8



ITEM 5a 

CABINET RESPONSE TO COUNCIL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
DIGITAL BY DEFAULT 
(considered by COSC on 3 October 2013) 
 
 
SELECT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

(a) That the Cabinet considers developing a high-level strategy document to help guide its 
approach to the digital delivery of both back-office and front-line services. 
 

(b) That consideration be given to identifying a Cabinet Member to take lead responsibility 
for the Council’s overall approach to the digital delivery of services. 

 
RESPONSE 
 
A report will be presented to the next Council Overview and Scrutiny committee’s meeting 
updating the committee on the Council’s progress and future plans to maximise the business 
benefits of digital technology. 
 
The Council is recruiting a Chief Digital Officer who will support the Corporate Leadership 
Team to develop the County Council platform that enables service delivery to residents. This 
will be achieved through open data and the effective use of all our assets improving visibility 
of services. This will allow residents, businesses and staff to understand the things we do 
and the value this provides. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Business Services has lead responsibility for the Council’s 
approach to the digital delivery of services. 
 
 
Denise Le Gal 
Cabinet Member for Business Services 
22 October 2013 
 

5

Item 5

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

Council Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
7 November 2013 

 

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME & RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 

 

 
 
1 The Committee is asked to review its Forward Work Programme and 

Recommendations Tracker which are attached. 
 

Recommendations: 

 
 That the Committee reviews its work programme and recommendations 

tracker makes suggestions for additions or amendments as appropriate 
 

Next Steps: 

 
The Committee will review its work programme and recommendations tracker 
at each of its meetings. 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Report contact: Bryan Searle, Senior Manager, Scrutiny and Appeals.  
 
Contact details: 020 8541 9019, bryans@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
Sources/background papers: None. 
 

6

Item 6

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



      
 

 

COUNCIL OVERVIEW & SELECT COMMITTEE  
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER – UPDATED November 2013 

 
The recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each Select Committee.  Once an action has been completed, it will be 
shaded out to indicate that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.  The next progress check will highlight to members 
where actions have not been dealt with.  

 
Recommendations made to Cabinet  
 

Date of 
meeting 
and 

reference 

Item Recommendations To Response Progress 
Check On 

3 October 
2013 
COSC 
003 

DIGITAL BY DEFAULT  
[Item 6] 

That the Cabinet considers 
developing a high-level strategy 
document to help guide its 
approach to the digital delivery of 
both back-office and front-line 
services. 

Cabinet This was 
considered at the 
Cabinet meeting 
on 22 October 
2013. A response 
is included in 
these papers. 

November 
2013 

3 October 
2013 
COSC 
004 

DIGITAL BY DEFAULT  
[Item 6] 

That consideration be given to 
identifying a Cabinet Member to 
take lead responsibility for the 
Council’s overall approach to the 
digital delivery of services. 

Cabinet This was 
considered at the 
Cabinet meeting 
on 22 October 
2013. A response 
is included in 
these papers. 

November 
2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 

6

P
age 13



 

 2

 
 
 
Select Committee and Officer Actions  

 

Date of 
meeting 
and 

reference 

Item Recommendations/ Actions To Response Progress 
Check On 

12 
September 
2013 
COSC 002  

63/13 PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING 2013-14 - 
QUARTER 1  [Item 9] 

Future reports to include 
comparisons with other councils. 

Senior Performance and 
Research Manager/ 
Cabinet Member for 
Business Services 
 
 
 

This will be 
implemented for the 
publication of the 
next Performance 
Monitoring quarterly 
report. 

January 
2014 

COMPLETED ITEMS 

12 
September 
2013  
COSC 001 

THE IMPACTS OF 
WELFARE REFORM 
IN SURREY [Item 7] 

That the Committee set up a 
Member Task Group to gather 
evidence from a range of 
stakeholders on the impacts of 
welfare reform and key issues for 
Surrey County Council and 
partners. 

Chairman/ Democratic 
Services 

This Member Task 
Group has been set 
up and will give a 
progress update on 
30 January 2014 

January 
2014 

3 October 
2013 
COSC 005 

DIGITAL BY DEFAULT  
[Item 6] 

That the Welfare Reform Task 
Group investigates the impact on 
users of the requirement for 
Universal Credit applications to be 
made online. 

Welfare Reform Task 
Group 

This has been 
included in the Task 
Group’s lines of 
enquiry. 
 
 
 
 

January 
2014 

6

P
age 14



 

 3

Date of 
meeting 
and 

reference 

Item Recommendations/ Actions To Response Progress 
Check On 

3 October 
2013 
COSC 006 

DIGITAL BY DEFAULT  
[Item 6] 

That the Committee receives a 
further report at its meeting in 
December 2013, summarising 
services already delivered digitally 
by the Council, and outlining 
initiatives in place or proposed to 
ensure a co-ordinated approach. 

Head of IMT/Head of 
Customer Services 

This report has been 
prepared and will be 
shared at the next 
Council Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 
meeting. 

December 
2014 

3 October 
2013 
COSC 007 

BUDGET 
MONITORING: 
AUGUST 2013  [Item 
7] 

Information was requested to 
address the second and third 
bullet-points from the Sub-Group 
report. 

Deputy Chief Finance 
Officer 

This information has 
been circulated to 
the Committee. 

November 
2014 

3 October 
2013 
COSC 007 

BUDGET 
MONITORING: 
AUGUST 2013  [Item 
7] 

Officers to provide details on the 
following: 
• IMT Business Planning and 
the increase in the number of IT 
users 
• The usage of the Ranger 
House, the Parkside House, and 
Egham purchases. 

Deputy Chief Finance 
Officer 

This information has 
been circulated to 
the Committee. 

November 
2014 

 

6

P
age 15



P
age 16

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 2    To review: 11/2013 

www.surreycc.gov.uk 

Council Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 
Forward Work Programme 

2013/14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  
  

Work commenced September 
2013 - Welfare Reform: Welfare 
reform will result in pressure on 
many Council services as the 
government changes take effect. 
What will be the impact on Surrey 
residents? What could the Council 
be doing now to minimise the 
impact?  
 

To be linked to consideration of 
Surrey’s present Medium Term Financial Plan 

(MTFP) 
 

Work commenced October 2013 
– Digital by Default: Like many 
Councils, Surrey is exploring the 
benefits and limitations of bringing 
or delivering services online. How 
do Surrey residents want to 
engage with the Council? To what 
extent should this be reflected in 
the Council’s Digital Strategy? 
What can we learn from other 
organisations approach to digital 
by default? 
 

This work is being undertaken by a Member 
Task Group throughout autumn 2013. There will 
progress report back to Committee in January 

2014 

The Committee will be looking at how the 
various strands of Digital by Default join up 

across the Directorates. 
 

Work Commencing November 2013 
- Staff: Given ongoing austerity, what 
do employees really feel about 
working for Surrey? Do employees 
have the appropriate tools and 
resources to do their job?  What is the 
impact of employee satisfaction and 
morale on service delivery? How can 
Surrey best support and value their 
employees? 

The Committee will be using their November 
meeting to discuss how the Council supports its 

staff with respect to wellbeing and morale. 
There will then be an opportunity to have a 
series of informal workshops with staff. 

 

6

Page 17



 

Page 2 of 2 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Items to be scheduled 

Communication (Internal & 
External): As a Council, are we 
communicating the right things, in 
the right way, to the right people?  
 

Social Capital: When resources are 
scarce, will residents acting 
collectively to tackle issues within the 
community plug the gap? 
 

Trading & Investment: What 
trading and investment models is 
Surrey currently utilising and what 
are the future options for the 
Council (looking at experiences 
outside of the County)? What will 
the governance arrangements be? 

 

The Committee had an update regarding 
Trading and Investment at its meeting on 12 
September 2013. Further updates will be 

presented as business cases are developed. 
 

The Cabinet agreed a Communications and 
Engagement Strategy at its meeting on 25 June 
2013. The Committee will review its progress 

following a period of 6 months. 
 

Adult Social Care Committee will be looking at 
this topic in autumn 2013. Following this, 

Council Overview & Scrutiny Committee will 
consider what wider opportunities there could 

be for the council. 
 

Work commencing December 
2013 – Budget Savings: Surrey is 
having to think differently about how 
it delivers services in light of public 
sector spending cuts. What is the 
impact of these cuts and changes 
on the everyday life of people in 
Surrey? 
 

It is intended that the work on welfare reform 
will help inform the Committee’s scrutiny of the 
2014/15 budget proposals (due to be finalised in 

February 2014) 
 

6

Page 18



Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
 

Council Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
7 September 2013 

 
BUDGET MONITORING REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER  2013 

 (PERIOD 6) 
 

Purpose of the report:  This report presents the revenue and capital budget 
monitoring up-date for September 2013 with projected year-end outturn. 
 

 

Introduction: 

 
1. The September 2013 month end budget report was presented to the 
cabinet meeting on Tuesday 22 October 2013. 

2. Annex 1 to this report sets out the council’s revenue and capital forecast of 
the year-end outturn at the end of August.  

3. The forecast is based upon current year to date income and expenditure 
and projections using information available at the end of the month. The 
report provides explanations for significant variations from the budget. 

 
Report contact: Kevin Kilburn, Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
 
Contact details: kevin.kilburn@surreycc.gov.uk 
020 8541 9207 

7

Item 7

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM 13 

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

CABINET 

DATE: 22 OCTOBER 2013 

REPORT OF: MR DAVID HODGE, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 

SHEILA LITTLE, CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER AND DEPUTY 
DIRECTOR FOR BUSINESS SERVICES 

SUBJECT: BUDGET MONITORING REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2013 

 
 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 

 
This report presents the council’s financial position at the end of period 6 – 
September of the 2013/14 financial year, with particular focus on the year end 
revenue and capital budgets forecasts and the achievement of efficiency targets. 

 
Please note that Annex 1 to this report will be circulated separately prior to the 
Cabinet meeting. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Cabinet is asked to note the following:  

1. forecast revenue budget underspend for 2013/14 of £1.4m on services, adding 
the unused £13m risk contingency brings this to £14.4m overall (paragraph 1);  

2. forecast ongoing efficiencies & service reductions achieved by year end 
(paragraph 63); 

3. forecast capital budget position for 2013/14 (paragraphs 66-70) 
4. management actions to mitigate overspends (throughout this report). 
5. quarter end balance sheet as at 30 September and movements in earmarked 

reserves and debt outstanding (paragraphs 71 to 78). 

Cabinet is asked to approve the following:  

6. request to drawdown the unused 2011/12 Whole System funding (£7.5m) to 
cover slippage on social capital saving (paragraph 13) 

 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
To comply with the agreed strategy of providing a monthly budget monitoring report 
to Cabinet for approval and action as necessary. 
 

DETAILS: 

1. The Council’s 2013/14 financial year commenced on 1 April 2013. This is the 
fourth budget monitoring report of 2013/14. The budget monitoring reports for 
this financial year have a greater focus on material and significant issues, 
especially the tracking of the efficiency and reduction targets within the Medium 
Term Financial Plan. The reports also have a greater emphasis on proposed 
actions to be taken to resolve any issues.  

7

Page 21



2 

  
2. The Council has implemented a risk based approach to budget monitoring 

across all directorates and services. The risk based approach is to ensure we 
focus resources on monitoring those higher risk budgets due to their value, 
volatility or reputational impact.  
 

3. There is a set of criteria to evaluate all budgets into high, medium and low risk. 
The criteria cover: 

• the size of a particular budget within the overall Council’s budget hierarchy 
(the range is under £2m to over £10m); 

• budget complexity relates to the type of activities and data being monitored 
(the criterion is about the percentage of the budget spent on staffing or 
fixed contracts - the greater the percentage the lower the complexity); 

• volatility is the relative rate at which either actual spend or projected spend 
move up and down (volatility risk is considered high if either the current 
year’s projected variance exceeds the previous year’s outturn variance, or 
the projected variance has been greater than 10% on four or more 
occasions during this year) 

• political sensitivity is about understanding how politically important the 
budget is and whether it has an impact on the Council’s reputation locally 
or nationally (the greater the sensitivity the higher the risk). 

 
4. High risk areas report monthly, whereas low risk services areas report on an 

exception basis. This will be if the year to date budget and actual spend vary by 
more than 10%, or £50,000, whichever is lower. 

 
5. Annex 1 to this report sets out the Council’s revenue budget forecast year end 

outturn as at the end of September 2013. The forecast is based upon current 
year to date income and expenditure as well as projections using information 
available to the end of the month.  
 

6. The report provides explanations for significant variations from the budget, with 
a focus on staffing and efficiency targets. As a guide, a forecast year end 
variance of greater than £1m is material and requires a commentary. For some 
services £1m may be too large or not reflect the service’s political significance, 
so any variance over 2.5% may also be material.  
 

7. Also, Annex 1 to this report updates Cabinet on the Council’s capital budget.  
 
8. Appendix 1 provides details of the directorate efficiencies and revenue and 

capital budget movements.  
 

9. To aid transparency and quicken final accounts, the council produces the 
financial statements at each quarter. Annex 2 reports the updated balances 
sheet as at 30 September 2013, accounts receivable position and earmarked 
usable reserves. 

 

Consultation: 

10. All Cabinet Members will have consulted their relevant Strategic Director on the 
financial positions of their portfolios. 
 

7

Page 22



   3 

Risk management and implications: 

11. Risk implications are stated throughout the report and each Strategic Director 
has updated their strategic and or service Risk Registers accordingly. In 
addition, the Leadership risk register continues to reflect the increasing 
uncertainty of future funding likely to be allocated to the Council. 
 

Financial and value for money implications  

12. The report considers financial and value for money implications throughout and 
future budget monitoring reports will continue this focus. The Council continues 
to have a strong focus on its key objective of providing excellent value for 
money. 
 
 

Section 151 Officer commentary  

13. The Section 151 Officer confirms that the financial information presented in this 
report is consistent with the council’s general accounting ledger and that 
forecasts have been based on reasonable assumptions, taking into account all 
material, financial and business issues and risks.. 
 

Legal implications – Monitoring Officer 

14. There are no legal issues and risks. 
 

Equalities and Diversity 

15. Any impacts of the budget monitoring actions will be evaluated by the individual 
services as they implement the management actions necessary. 

 

Climate change/carbon emissions implications 

16. The County Council attaches great importance to being environmentally aware 
and wishes to show leadership in cutting carbon emissions and tackling climate 
change. 
 

17. Any impacts on climate change and carbon emissions to achieve the Council’s 
aim will be considered by the relevant service affected as they implement any 
actions agreed. 
 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

The relevant adjustments from the recommendations will be made to the Council’s 
accounts. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: 
Sheila Little, Chief Finance Officer and Deputy Director for Business Services 
020 8541 7012 
 
Consulted: 
Cabinet / Corporate Leadership Team 

7

Page 23



4 

 
Annexes: 
Annex 1 – Revenue budget, staffing costs, efficiencies and capital programme 
summary. 
Appendix 1 – Directorate financial information (revenue and efficiencies) and revenue 
and capital budget movements. 
Annex 2 – Balance sheet, accounts receivable position and earmarked usable 
reserves. 
 
Sources/background papers: 
None 
 

 

7

Page 24



  Annex 

Budget monitoring period 6 2013/14 (September 2013) 

Summary recommendations 

Cabinet is asked to note the following:  

1. forecast revenue budget underspend for 2013/14 of £1.4m on services, adding the unused 
£13m risk contingency brings this to £14.4m overall (paragraph 1);  

2. forecast ongoing efficiencies & service reductions achieved by year end (paragraph 63); 
3. forecast capital budget position for 2013/14 (paragraphs 66 to 70); 
4. management actions to mitigate overspends (throughout this report). 
5. quarter end balance sheet as at 30 September and movements in earmarked reserves and 

debt outstanding (paragraphs 71 to 78). 

Cabinet is asked to approve the following:  

6. request to drawdown the unused 2011/12 Whole System funding (£7.5m) to cover slippage on 
social capital saving (paragraph 13) 

Summary - Revenue  

The Council set its budget for the 2013/14 financial year in the context of the Government’s 
continuing austerity programme, with reducing public spending and rising demand for services. In 
setting a balanced 2013/14 budget, the Council developed plans for efficiencies and service 
reductions totalling £68m and approved the use of £11m earmarked reserves and £12m general 
balances. In developing its five year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP 2013-18), the Council 
approved plans to achieve efficiencies and service reductions totalling £167m, following 
achievement of £225m efficiencies from 2009 to 2012. Cabinet carried out a review of the MTFP 
after the first quarter of 2013/14. The review identified additional savings services can realistically 
deliver for 2014-18 of £56.0m (£19.5m in 2014/15). 

The Local Government Peer Review of March 2013 recognised the Council’s longer term view and 
multi-year approach to financial management. As part of this, Cabinet approved carry forward of 
£7.9m underspend from 2012/13 to fund projects and commitments in 2013/14. 

Figure 1: Revenue position

 

At the end of September 2013, services forecast a total underspend of -£1.4m (+£0.6m at the end 
of August). This excludes use of the 2013/14 budget’s £13m risk contingency and -£0.4m net 
income on the Revolving Infrastructure and Investment Fund, which will be re-invested in the fund.  

The overall forecast position is -£14.4m underspend. This links with the corporate strategy of using 
our resources responsibly. 

The slight net forecast underspend on services is a net result of: Adult Social Care slippage 
implementing social capital strategy (+£2.6m), Children’s Services’ delays in achieving efficiencies 
(+£0.5m) and net additional pressures (+£0.2m); plus support for local bus routes (+£0.6m); offset 
by underspends within Business Services (-£2.5m) and Central Income & Expenditure (-£2.8m).  

One third of Adult Social Care’s (ASC) demanding (£46m) savings requirement relies on the 
success of the policy to maximise use of social capital. Given the scale of the challenge for the first 

£1,670.2m £13.0m £1.4m

£1,600m £1,620m £1,640m £1,660m £1,680m £1,700m

Year end expenditure forecast 
Risk  

contingency Underspend 

7

Page 25



  Annex 

year of these ambitious plans, it is not surprising that there has been slippage. To cover this, ASC 
has requested approval to draw down £7.5m available Whole Systems funding carried forward 
from previous years to offset it on a one-off basis. 

Summary – Efficiencies 

A key objective of MTFP 2013-18 is to increase the council’s overall financial resilience, including 
by reducing reliance on government grants. MTFP 2013-18 includes savings and reduction 
totalling £68.3m in 2013/14 (£167m for 2013-18). At the end of September 2013, services forecast 
to achieve £63.6m efficiencies by year end. This is an underachievement of £4.7m, up from £2.1m 
forecast at the end of August. The increase is due to slippage in ASC’s innovative social capital 
strategy. The remainder is due to delays within Children Services and bus issues outlined above.  

The overall position on efficiencies also includes £7.7m ASC savings re-categorised as one-off 
measures. These delayed savings from 2013/14 will need to be made in 2014/15. 

Summary - Capital  

Part of the corporate vision is to create public value by improving outcomes for Surrey’s residents. 
This vision is at the heart of the capital programme. MTFP 2013-18 set a £699m five year capital 
programme. Cabinet approved re-profiling of carry forwards and virements means the revised 
2013/14 capital budget is £189.8m. At the end of September 2013, services forecast overall capital 
spending will achieve a -£9.5m underspend by year end (-£2.4m at the end of August).  

This is mainly due to delays: acquiring land for waste schemes (-£3.3m), from archaeological finds 
at Guildford Fire Station (-£3.0m); in deliveries for the fire vehicle and equipment replacement 
programme (-£1.4m); rephasing some short stay schools (-£0.8m); and obtaining planning 
permission to improve a travellers’ site (-£0.5m). 

7

Page 26



  Annex 

Revenue budget 

1. The updated revenue budget for the 2013/14 financial year, including schools, was 
supported by £23.0m of earmarked and general reserves, plus £7.9m revenue carried 
forward from 2012/13 to fund committed 2013/14 expenditure. The current projection for 
the council funded service net revenue budget is -£1.4m underspend. This excludes use of 
the £13m risk contingency in the 2013/14 budget and the -£0.4m net income on the 
Revolving Infrastructure and Investment Fund, which the council will re-invest in the fund. 
The overall forecast year end position for the council is -£14.4m underspend (-£12.4m at 
the end of August). 

2. The year to date budget variance is an underspend of -£14.8m. This is due to the early and 
additional receipt of specific government grants of nearly -£6m, and government grants for 
schools budgets of -£3.6m. Schools funding is determined by an agreed formula under 
statute and expenditure decisions are the responsibility of each school’s governing body.  

3. Both the year to date and forecast revenue budget positions are shown by directorate in 
the graphs below. Tables App 3 and App 4 in the appendix to this annex show further 
details of the year to date and year end forecast positions. 

Figure 2: Year to date revenue position 

 

4. Services’ year end forecast is a total underspend of -£1.4m (+£0.6m at the end of August)., 
This excludes use of the 2013/14 budget’s £13m risk contingency and -£0.4m net income 
on the Revolving Infrastructure and Investment Fund, which will be re-invested in the fund. 
Including the £13m risk contingency makes the overall forecast -£14.4m underspend.  

Figure 3: Year end forecast revenue position  

 

£203.1m

£158.4m

£266.5m

£43.1m

£70.0m

£47.3m
£9.7m £6.1m

£23.4m

£208.7m

£156.3m

£262.9m

£41.1m

£67.8m

£44.2m

£9.6m £6.1m £16.1m

£0m

£50m

£100m

£150m

£200m

£250m

£300m

ASC CSF Schools C&C E&I BUS CXO PH Net support

Gross Funding Gross Expenditure

£415m

£331m

£522m

£84m
£151m

£99m £17m £27m £26m

£418m

£332m

£522m

£84m

£152m
£96m

£17m £27m £23m

£0m

£100m

£200m

£300m

£400m

£500m

£600m

ASC CSF Schools C&C E&I BUS CXO PH Net 

support

Gross Funding Gross Expenditure

7

Page 27



  Annex 

5. The slight net forecast underspend on services is a result of: Adult Social Care slippage 
implementing social capital strategy (+£2.6m); Children’s Services’ delays in achieving 
efficiencies (+£0.5m) and net additional pressures (+£0.2m); plus support for local bus 
routes (+£0.6m); offset by underspends within Business Services (-£2.5m) and Central 
Income & Expenditure (-£2.8m). 

Figure 4: Year to date and forecast year end expenditure variance 

 

6. Below, each directorate reports a summarised income & expenditure statement and service 
and policy financial information that explain any variances, their impact and services’ 
actions to mitigate any adverse variances.  

7. The background information appendix gives the updated budget with explanations of the 
budget movements. 

£5.6m

-£2.1m

-£3.6m

-£2.0m

-£2.2m

-£3.1m

-£0.1m

£0.0m

-£7.3m

-£14.8m

-£15.0m -£10.0m -£5.0m £0.0m £5.0m

Year to date gross expenditure variance

£2.6m

£0.7m

£0.0m

-£0.3m

£0.8m

-£2.5m

-£0.0m

£0.0m

-£2.7m

-£1.4m

-£15.0m -£10.0m -£5.0m £0.0m £5.0m

ASC

CSF

Schools

C&C

E&I

BUS

CXO

PH

Net CIE

Overall

Year end gross expenditure variance

7

Page 28



  Annex 

Adult Social Care 

Table 1: Summary of the revenue position for the directorate 

Adult Social Care 
YTD 

Budget 
YTD 

Actual 
YTD 

Variance 

Full Year 
(Revised) 

Budget 

Oct – 
Mar 

Forecast 
Full Year 

Projection 
Full Year 
Variance 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Summary by subjective 
     Income -34.3 -34.0 0.3 -68.7 -42.9 -76.9 -8.2 

Expenditure 203.4 208.7 5.3 406.8 208.9 417.6 10.8 

Net position 169.1 174.7 5.6 338.1 166.0 340.7 2.6 

Summary by service 
   Income -34.3 -34.0 0.3 -68.7 -42.9 -76.9 -8.2 

Older People 79.1 87.4 8.3 158.1 82.6 170.0 11.9 

Physical Disabilities 24.4 24.8 0.4 48.9 24.1 48.9 0.0 

Learning Disabilities 65.1 63.8 -1.3 130.2 67.9 131.7 1.5 

Mental Health 4.6 4.6 0.0 9.2 4.9 9.5 0.3 

Other Expenditure 30.2 28.1 -2.1 60.4 29.4 57.5 -2.9 

Total by service 169.1 174.7 5.6 338.1 166.0 340.7 2.6 

8. The September projected outturn for Adult Social Care is +£2.6m (0.8%) overspend.  This 
represents an increase of £2.6m from last month. 

9. The revised full year projection is after careful consideration of the year to date position, 
which is showing an overspend of £5.6m.  The risk of an overspend due to considerable 
pressures and commensurately demanding savings targets was highlighted during the 
budget planning process and was also flagged in last month’s monitoring report. 

10. The projected overspend needs to be set in context of ASC’s very challenging savings 
target of £45.9m.  The directorate has made good progress in many of the savings actions 
and judges that £23.1m of savings have either been achieved or will be achieved without 
needing further management action.  ASC will make every effort to achieve a balanced 
budget, however the half year position indicates that despite considerable ongoing work to 
generate further savings, the directorate is unlikely to bring the budget completely back in 
line by year end. 

11. The most significant element of the directorate’s savings plans is the social capital agenda, 
now formally re-launched as Family, Friends and Community Support.  It is a new and 
innovative strategy designed to provide more personalised community support options to 
individuals requiring care, while at the same time reducing direct costs to the council.  ASC 
is implementing the new strategy and it has been a key driver in the recent Rapid 
Improvement Events (RIEs) on the social care and financial assessment processes. 

12. The social capital savings target for 2013/14 is £15.5m.  As at the end of September, ASC 
forecasts £6.5m of savings meaning slippage of £9.0m is currently projected against the 
original target.  The slippage reflects the amount of cultural and systems change and 
community development to implement the strategy in full.  There are now signs the strategy 
may be starting to take effect, but it will not be possible to recover the slippage. 

13. The Directorate is looking at all possible opportunities to cover the slippage on social 
capital and smaller shortfalls on some other savings plans.  At present the main counter-
measure identified is to drawdown £7.5m of unused 2011/12 Whole Systems funding.  
Previous monitoring cycles have cited this as a possibility.  In light of the comprehensive 
review of the year to date position conducted this month, the Directorate now requests 
formal Cabinet approval to use the Whole Systems funding to cover the slippage on social 
capital savings. 

7

Page 29



  Annex 

14. The current year end projection relies on the Directorate implementing £20.1m of 
management action savings plans in the remainder of the financial year.  This includes the 
£7.5m Whole Systems drawdown outlined above, leaving £12.6m of further savings to be 
delivered between October 2013 and March 2014.  Table 2 summarises the management 
actions included in the September projections. 

15. The key driver of the underlying pressures the service faces is individually commissioned 
care services.  The gross spend to date on spot care, excluding Transition, has on average 
been £21.3m per month for April to September. That compares with £21.4m per month at 
the end of 2012/13, indicating that while ASC is largely containing new in year demand 
pressures, expenditure has not yet decreased as planned.  Assuming all savings occur as 
currently forecast or are replaced by other means, then the Directorate can afford to spend 
only £19.9m per month to achieve an overall balanced budget.  Therefore, it needs to 
reduce expenditure on individually commissioned care services by 6.7%.  September’s 
position indicates this reduction is feasible as the monthly spend was £20.2m – the lowest 
reported month to date by over £1m.  At least two more months’ data is required to 
determine whether this is an ongoing reduction or a one-off fluctuation, but it does suggest 
that the social capital strategy is starting to have a positive impact. 

16. The evaluation of whether use of Social Capital has reduced spend on spot care is critical 
for planning the 2014/15 budget as well as for the 2013/14 outturn.   

Table 2:Summary of Adult Social Care Forecast 

 £m £m 

ASC MTFP Efficiency Target  (45.8) 

Demand related savings, including social capital, achieved (or not needing further 
management action) to date 

(1.8)  

Other savings achieved (or not needing further management action) to date  (21.3)  

Total savings achieved (or not needing further management action) to date  (23.1) 

Savings forecast in the rest of the year through use of social capital (6.0)  

Other savings forecast in the rest of the year and included as management actions (6.6)  

Total savings forecast in the rest of the year  (12.6) 

Total forecast savings before draw downs  (35.7) 

Planned draw down of 2011/12 Whole Systems funding  (7.5) 

Total forecast savings  (43.2) 

Under / (Over) performance vs MTFP target  2.6 

17. On a client group basis, the projected pressures currently appear mainly in Older People.  
That is largely due to the original allocation of social capital savings targets, which initially 
expected the majority of social capital savings would be achieved within Older People.  
This month’s review of the social capital strategy and its savings targets indicates ASC will 
achieve savings much more broadly across the client groups. Therefore a virement is likely 
during October to move appropriate proportions of the savings targets to other client 
groups.  This will give a truer indication of where pressures lie across the Directorate, but 
will have no impact on the overall budget monitoring position. 

7

Page 30



  Annex 

Children, Schools & Families 

Table 3: Summary of the revenue position for directorate  

Children, Schools & 
Families 

YTD 
Budget 

YTD 
Actual 

YTD 
Variance 

Full Year 
(Revised) 

Budget 

Oct - 
Mar 

Forecast 
Full Year 

Projection 

Full 
Year 

Variance 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Summary by subjective 
     Income -70.9 -70.6 0.3 -150.8 -81.3 -151.9 -1.1 

Expenditure 158.7 156.3 -2.4 330.1 175.6 331.9 1.8 

Net position 87.8 85.7 -2.1 179.3 94.3 180.0 0.7 

Summary by Service:             

Income -70.9 -70.6 0.3 -150.8 -81.3 -151.9 -1.1 

Strategic Services 3.2 2.9 -0.3 5.4 2.1 5.0 -0.4 

Children’s Services 44.0 45.6 1.6 88.0 45.8 91.4 3.4 

Schools and Learning 101.5 96.5 -5.0 214.4 116.5 213.0 -1.4 
Services for Young 
People 10.0 11.3 1.3 22.3 11.2 22.5 0.2 

Total by service 87.8 85.7 -2.1 179.3 94.3 180.0 0.7 

18. The forecast outturn position for the Children Schools and Families directorate (CSF) is an 
overspend of £0.7m.  This is £1m less than forecast at period five.  The main reasons for 
the overspend is continuing pressures in Children’s services and increasing demand within 
Schools & Learning for transport in relation to children with SEN. This is now offset by an 
improved trading position for Commercial Services which largely accounts for the reduction 
in the forecast overspend. 

19. The year to date underspend of -£2.1m is mainly due to DSG underspends on nursery 
provision (-£2.3m) and staffing across the directorate (-£1m) that are reflected in the 
forecast. 

Children’s Services   

20. In Children's Services the projected overspend has reduced by £0.3m to +£2.6m. The main 
reasons for this overspend are: 

• The services for children with disabilities budgets are overspending by +£1.8m, of which 
£1.3m relates to the budget reduction for the MTFP efficiency in this service area. This 
forecast has reduced by £0.3m due to savings on contracts now to be this financial year 
and CSF heads of service are looking at alternative savings as a key management 
action.  

• The remaining element of the overspend on services for children with disabilities forms 
part of the overall overspend on agency placements of +£0.4m which has reduced this 
month. Although the overall number of placements is greater than at the start of the year 
(212 compared to 205 in March) the number has fallen by 14 since August.  

• Area care services forecast an overspend of +£0.5m due to an increase in the instances 
of court proceedings (144 so far this year, compared to 169 in all of 2012/13) together 
with an increase in the fees.  . 

• A +£0.5m overspend is anticipated due to ongoing difficulties recruiting permanent 
social workers and a resulting reliance on more expensive agency staff.  The market for 
good quality agency staff is increasingly competitive which pushes agency costs even 
higher. This has been an ongoing problem and CSF has plans in place to improve 
recruitment and retention of social workers through the career progression framework 
and the recruitment programme in North East Area to grow our own skilled workforce, 
though the results of these initiatives will take time to realise.  

7

Page 31



  Annex 

• The budgets for leaving care and asylum seekers are expected to overspend by +£0.4m 
as the number of cases continues at a similar level to that experienced in 2012/13 when 
a similar overspend occurred.  

• The pressure on fostering and adoption allowances continues at +£0.4m.  The number 
of foster placements is 23 higher than the number the service budgeted for. In addition 
the number of Special Guardianship Orders (SGO) continues to increase; the projection 
assumes an additional 65 SGOs will be made this year compared to 45 in 2012/13.  

• Offsetting these overspends are net underspends of -£0.9m in Children’s Services.  
These are planned to continue in order to help alleviate the cost pressures. 

Schools and Learning 

21. Schools and Learning forecasts is an underspend of -£1.4m on county funded services. 

22. The main pressure on the Schools and Learning budget is an overspend on transport of 
+£2.1m.  This is mainly in relation to SEN (+£1.9m).  The forecast is similar to that reported 
at period five pending greater clarity on the impact of changes to transport patterns at the 
start of the new academic year. The school transport service already faced a budget 
pressure of £0.7m, reported as an overspend in the 2012/13 outturn report.  In addition to 
this pupil numbers and costs have continued to rise, particularly around SEN with the total 
number of pupils transported reaching 2,500 in July, 78 higher than at the same point last 
year and leading to additional costs of £0.8m.  Also there are extra academic days in this 
financial year adding an additional funding pressure of £0.6m. 

23. The head of service is working to confirm the position on demand related SEN service 
budgets, including transport and other DSG funded SEN services.  As in previous years, 
the start of the new academic year will provide more certainty around actual pupil numbers 
and the forecasts from October will reflect this more accurate service information. 

24. Offsetting the transport overspend is an underspend on centrally held budgets of -£2.1m. 
This is mainly against the budget for demographics and inflation. Given £7m savings plans, 
CSF prudently decided to hold this budget centrally to cover pressures arising from 
demand led budgets where the position and impact of funding changes would not become 
clear until the start of the new academic year.   

25. In addition Commercial Services is projecting a higher than budgeted contribution to 
corporate overheads of -£0.8m.  This projection takes into account the reduced contribution 
due to the loss of cleaning and catering contracts which is more than offset by improved 
contract prices and increased school meals income from September 2013.  

Services for Young people and Strategic Services 

26. Services for Young People forecasts a small +£0.1m overspend at this stage.  However 
this does not include potential savings on the new responsibilities for 16-24 year old young 
people with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND). Early indications are that 
demand on this budget will be less than anticipated, the position will be clearer from 
October when more complete information on the take up of local college places is 
available. 

27. Strategic Services anticipates an underspend of -£0.4m mainly due to recognition that 
resources set aside for one off service initiatives are now unlikely to be required this 
financial year.  

7

Page 32



  Annex 

Schools (delegated budget) 

Table 4: Summary of the revenue position for the delegated schools budget 

Summary 
YTD 

Budget 
YTD 

Actual 
YTD 

Variance 

Full Year 
(Revised) 

Budget 
Oct - Mar 
Forecast 

Full Year 
Projection 

Full 
Year 

Variance 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Income -262.7 -266.4 -3.7 -505.4 -239.0 -505.4 0.0 

Expenditure 262.8 262.9 0.1 505.5 242.6 505.5 0.0 

Net position 0.1 -3.5 -3.6 0.1 3.6 0.1 0.0 

28. The position is unchanged since the beginning of the year. The budget has been updated 
for the recent transfers of Surrey schools to Academy status (-£18.6m) There also were 
volume related grant changes of +£2.5m. The schools delegated budget will be reviewed in 
October, after the new school year has commenced.  

Customer & Communities 

Table 5: Summary of the revenue position for directorate 

Summary 
YTD 

Budget 
YTD 

Actual 
YTD 

Variance 

Full Year 
(Revised) 

Budget 

Oct - 
Mar 

Forecast 
Full Year 

Projection 

Full 
Year 

Variance 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Income -11.8 -12.6 -0.8 -24.0 -11.9 -24.5 -0.5 

Expenditure 42.3 41.1 -1.2 84.0 43.1 84.2 0.2 

Net position 30.5 28.5 -2.0 60.0 31.2 59.7 -0.3 

Summary by service 
  

  
  

  

Cultural Services 5.4 5.1 -0.3 10.8 5.6 10.7 -0.1 

Fire & Rescue 18.1 17.8 -0.3 35.6 17.8 35.6 0.0 

Customer Services 2.0 1.9 -0.1 4.0 2.1 4.0 0.0 

Trading Standards 1.1 1.0 -0.1 2.2 1.2 2.2 0.0 

Community Partner & Safety 2.3 1.2 -1.1 4.1 2.9 4.1 0.0 

County Coroner 0.5 0.6 0.1 1.1 0.5 1.1 0.0 

C&C Directorate Support 1.1 0.9 -0.2 2.2 1.1 2.0 -0.2 

Total by service 30.5 28.5 -2.0 60.0 31.2 59.7 -0.3 

29. The year to date underspend is -£2.0m, mainly due to the timing of expenditure on third 
party grants and member allocations within Community Partnership and Safety. Further 
small underspends exist in fire training and operational communication equipment budgets 
due to prioritising delivering the resilience project.  The remainder is due to: Registration 
and Trading Standards income already earned; timing of training and web development 
expenditure, along with the year to date impact of the full year underspend.   

30. The directorate currently projects a small underspend of -£0.3m (-£0.2m at the end of 
August).  This is predominantly from early achievement of the 2014/15 MTFP efficiency on 
Directorate Support costs, due to holding posts vacant and sharing costs (-£0.2m).  A 
further underspend is expected from the continued increase in income generated by 
Registration (-£0.1m) due in part to the three yearly cycle of venue licensing income.  
Future MTFP income targets will reflect this appropriately. Legislative changes affect the 
Coroners service (+£0.1m). The full year pressure that will take effect in 2014/15 is 
expected to create an ongoing annual pressure in the region of £0.2m. 

7

Page 33



  Annex 

Environment & Infrastructure 

Table 6: Summary of the revenue position for directorate 

Summary 
YTD 

Budget 
YTD 

Actual 
YTD 

Variance 

Full Year 
(Revised) 

Budget 

Oct - 
Mar 

Forecast 
Full Year 

Projection 

Full 
Year 

Variance 

  £m £m £m £m   £m £m 

Income -9.4 -8.6 0.8 -18.7 -10.7 -19.3 -0.6 

Expenditure 70.8 67.8 -3.0 150.6 84.2 152.0 1.4 

Net 61.4 59.2 -2.2 131.9 73.5 132.7 0.8 

Summary by service 
       Environment 28.0 28.4 0.4 61.0 33.1 61.5 0.5 

Highways 19.8 18.0 -1.8 44.4 26.6 44.6 0.2 
Economy, Transport & 
Planning 13.5 12.7 -0.8 26.3 13.7 26.4 0.1 

Other Directorate Costs 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.0 

Total by service 61.4 59.2 -2.2 131.9 73.5 132.7 0.8 

Note: All numbers have been rounded - which might cause a casting error 

31. The year to date position for Environment & Infrastructure (E&I) is an underspend of £2.2m.  
This primarily relates to highway maintenance works including road maintenance (which 
has an additional £5m allocation to address winter damage) local schemes and street 
lighting (where some works are delayed). 

32. The forecast outturn for E&I is an overspend of +£0.8m.  Local bus support expects to 
overspend by +£0.4m as a result of difficulty achieving planned contract savings and also a 
number of instances where bus routes are no longer commercially viable and need 
financial support from the council.  Waste management budgets also expect to overspend 
by +£0.5m primarily due to the need for external specialist advice to progress the contract 
variation.  Additional employee costs (+£0.4m) are expected to be largely offset by 
additional income and recharges later in the year.  Highways has incurred +£0.2m 
additional costs due to the Tour of Britain, including road closures and diversions.  A 
number of underspends across the directorate offset these cost pressures , including 
economic development initiatives funded through New Homes Bonus grant, which are 
expected to underspend by -£0.2m.  E&I is considering options to bring expenditure in line 
with budget. 

33. The Directorate faces a number of further risks around costs and income this year.  These 
include:  

• uncertainty around waste disposal costs which remain dependant on waste volumes and 
treatments and on the contract variation;  

• future arrangements for the payment of fuel duty rebate to bus operators which is due to 
transfer to local authorities in January 2014; and  

• plans to achieve a number of challenging efficiency savings and cost reductions this 
financial year including reducing contract costs and increasing income and recharges. 

7

Page 34



  Annex 

Business Services 

Table 7: Summary of the revenue position for directorate 

Summary 
YTD 

Budget 
YTD 

Actual 
YTD 

Variance 

Full Year 
(Revised) 

Budget 

Oct - 
Mar 

Forecast 
Full Year 

Projection 

Full 
Year 

Variance 

  £m £m £m £m   £m £m 

Income -7.1 -8.0 -0.9 -14.7 -7.3 -15.3 -0.6 

Expenditure 46.4 44.2 -2.2 97.9 51.8 96.0 -1.9 

Net 39.3 36.2 -3.1 83.2 44.5 80.7 -2.5 

Summary by service 

Property 14.3 13.2 -1.1 32.4 18.1 31.3 -1.1 

Information Management 
& Technology 

11.3 10.7 -0.6 23.3 12.6 23.3 0.0 

Human Resources & OD 4.2 3.9 -0.3 8.4 4.7 8.6 0.2 

Finance 4.4 4.2 -0.2 8.8 4.1 8.3 -0.5 

Shared Services 2.1 1.7 -0.4 4.2 2.3 4.0 -0.2 

Procurement & 
Commissioning 

1.6 1.7 0.1 3.3 1.6 3.3 0.0 

Business Improvement 1.4 0.8 -0.6 2.8 1.1 1.9 -0.9 

Total by service 39.3 36.2 -3.1 83.2 44.5 80.7 -2.5 

Note: All numbers have been rounded - which might cause a casting error 

34. Business Services estimates a revenue underspend of -£2.5m. Business Services has 
challenging revenue savings targets for this year and next. The service will deliver this 
year’s efficiency savings and aims to bring forward some of next years, one-off revenue 
savings are also being achieved. The Service has a year to date underspend of -£3.1m, the 
majority of the underspends are explained by the reasons for the full year forecast 
variances given below. The year to date underspend within IMT is -£0.6m due to the timing 
of delivery of projects and an increase in activity is expected in the second half of the year. 
In addition the service completed phase 5 of its restructure in August and expects future 
spend will be in line with the budget. 

35. The estimated revenue underspend has increased by -£2m compared to last month. The 
largest change is to the Making a Difference programme which is now expected to 
underspend by -£1m. There are further savings in Property Services of -£0.6m and a 
reduction of -£0.2m to the HR forecast overspend. Additional staffing savings have been 
identified in both Finance and Shared Services. 

36. The Making a Difference programme is on track to deliver savings of £6.6m per annum 
from the office portfolio and has supported staff to work more flexibly with the benefits of 
new technology and a change in the way we work. The programme started in 2010 and 
includes implementing Electronic Data & Record Management (EDRM) across the council. 
EDRM solutions have been implemented for social care activity and will be implemented for 
the rest of the organisation by IMT alongside a Lotus Notes upgrade, resulting in a Making 
a Difference saving of -£1m.  

37. Property Services is forecasting an underspend of -£1.1m, the increased underspend is 
mainly as a result of a forecast underspend on utilities of -£0.6m. A combination of factors 
means the service is predicting a saving on utility usage and associated fees of -£0.6m. 
Property Services is leading sound energy management and driving down spend against a 
backdrop of rising prices (there will be a price increase in October, which is predicted to be 
around 7-10%). This forecast may change if prices rise above this level or if there is a 
particularly harsh winter. This saving is reflected in the 2014/15 MTFP. In addition, Adult 
Social Care staff will take more space in district and borough offices to enhance partnership 
working at a 2013/14 cost of £0.2m. The ongoing full year rent cost of this is £0.1m, the 

7

Page 35



  Annex 

2014/15 MTFP allows for this expansion. Property Services has successfully appealed 
against the rateable value of several properties, the largest being County Hall. This has 
resulted in -£0.2m rebate for these properties. The service has been advised that the 
remaining rates are set appropriately so ongoing savings are unlikely. The Service is also 
forecasting to exceed its efficiency saving income target of £0.2m by a further £0.2m. There 
has been an increase in income from hiring venues for events and additional rental income 
from properties. This additional saving is included in the 2014/15 MTFP. 

38. The HR and Organisational Development forecast overspend has reduced from +£0.4m to 
+£0.25m. The overspend is mainly because of training and recruitment which the service is 
addressing for 2014/15. The pressure on recruitment is as a result of continued recruitment 
activity. The service is reducing costs elsewhere to absorb as much of these costs as 
possible.  

39. Finance and Shared Services are forecasting an increased underspend of -£0.1m each. 
Both services have held vacancies in order to meet efficiency savings required in 2014/15. 

40. Business Services manages the distribution of the non ringfenced Local Assistance Grant, 
which the Department for Work and Pensions transferred to local authorities for 2013/14. 
Only £0.3m of the £1.2m grant has been spent to date. The service is managing the 
distribution effectively and is keen to ensure that those who require the assistance do 
receive it and is therefore reviewing several options, such as promoting the grant internally. 

Chief Executive’s Office 

Table 8: Summary of the revenue position for directorate 

Summary 
YTD 

Budget 
YTD 

Actual 
YTD 

Variance 

Full Year 
(Revised) 

Budget 

Oct - 
Mar 

Forecast 
Full Year 

Projection 
Full Year 
Variance 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Income -14.2 -6.8 7.4 -28.4 -21.2 -28.0 0.4 

Expenditure 23.2 15.7 -7.5 44.4 28.3 44.0 -0.4 

Net 9.0 8.9 -0.1 16.0 7.1 16.0 0.0 

Summary by service 

     Strategic Leadership 0.3 0.2 -0.1 0.5 0.3 0.5 0.0 

Legacy 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.4 0.2 0.4 0.0 

Emergency Management 0.2 0.3 0.1 0.5 0.2 0.5 0.0 

Communications 1.0 0.9 -0.1 2.0 1.0 1.9 -0.1 

Legal & Democratic 
Services 

5.6 5.6 0.0 9.6 4.2 9.8 0.2 

Policy & Performance 1.7 1.7 0.0 3.0 1.2 2.9 -0.1 

Public Health 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total by service 9.0 8.9 -0.1 16.0 7.1 16.0 0.0 

Public Health - Income -13.5 -6.1 7.4 -27.0 -20.4 -26.5 0.5 
Public Health - 
expenditure 

13.5 6.1 -7.4 27.0 20.4 26.5 -0.5 

Public Health - net 
expenditure 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

41. The Chief Executive’s Office (CXO) currently projects a balanced budget against a total 
revenue budget of £16.0m (-£0.2m forecast at the end of August). This is predominantly 
due to holding vacancies within Policy & Performance in preparation for achieving 2014/15 
efficiency savings, offset by pressures in Legal due to the cost and volume of child 
protection cases. 

7

Page 36



  Annex 

42. CXO has taken on the council’s new responsibility for Public Health (PH) this year. Some 
uncertainties remain in this first year of Public Health budgets.  Nonetheless, PH expects to 
manage to achieve a balanced position. 

43. Public Health Income: the Department of Health (DH) allocated £3.3m of funding for sexual 
health services to the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) in error.  The council is 
escalating discussions with CCGs to recover this funding. CXO has also written to DH 
asking it to confirm it will rectify this misallocation for future years. 

44. In addition PH budgeted to recover a further £0.5m from the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) in relation to Drug and Alcohol services.  The PCC's priorities have 
changed from those of the Police Authority and the PCC has confirmed it will not provide 
this funding in 2013/14.  As part of the forward budget process, PH will review this service 
and decide how it will continue in the future.  In the current year PH will offset the under 
recovery against the underspend on staffing explained below. 

45. A new budget issue being investigated is the cost of prescribing drugs related to the Public 
Health (PH) programme. In August, it came to light nationally that the NHS Business 
Services Authority may recharge local authorities for such costs and that this amount was 
not included in the council’s baseline allocation.  The Surrey PH team is gathering 
information on the potential size of these charges to assess the extent of the impact.  As 
this is a country wide issue the Director of Public Health (DPH) is linking with other DPHs to 
progress this matter nationally with DH. 

46. Public Health Expenditure: Because some staff did not transfer to the council from NHS 
Surrey as part of the changes to the NHS from 1 April 2013, PH currently has a number of 
vacancies throughout its team, including many at senior level.  PH is continuing to make 
progress to recruit to these posts and has already appointed some new staff, including 
three public health consultants.  The majority of these staff are not expected to be in post 
before November 2013. 

47. PH is putting in place one off initiatives to ensure the ring fenced public health grant is fully 
used by the year.  The full year position is forecast to be balanced. 

Central Income & Expenditure 

Table 9: Summary of the revenue position for directorate 

 

YTD 
Budget 

YTD 
Actual 

YTD 
Variance 

Full Year 
(Revised) 

Budget 

Oct - 
Mar 

Forecast 
Full Year 

Projection 

Full 
Year 

Variance 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Summary by subjective      

Income -204.1 -208.6 -4.5 -246.8 -43.3 -251.9 -5.1 

Expenditure 17.5 16.1 -1.4 36.5 22.7 38.8 2.3 

  -186.6 -192.5 -5.9 -210.3 -20.6 -213.1 -2.8 

Local Taxation -304.0 -305.0 -1.0 -599.3 -294.3 -599.3 0.0 

Risk contingency 0.0 0.0 0.0 13.0 0.0 0.0 -13.0 

Net position -490.6 -497.5 -6.9 -796.6 -314.9 -812.4 -15.8 

48. The year to date variance of -£6.9m underspend is primarily caused by receipt of additional 
government grant income in 2013/14 that is not included in the MTFP. The main items are: 

• -£2.5m more has been received in PFI grants compared to budget. 

• -£1.4m was received as a refund on Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent Grant 
(LACSEG) grant on the transfer of schools to academy status;  

• -£1.0m as an Adoption Reform Grant; 

• -£0.5m Local Services Support Grant;  

7

Page 37



  Annex 

• -£0.25m was received as Surrey’s share of the Council Tax Transition Grant due to the 
Boroughs and Districts having compliant local council tax support schemes; and 

• -£0.1m for HM Courts Service Grant.  

• These additional grants are partially off-set by +£1.8m Dedicated Schools Grant 
budgeted for but not yet received.  

49. Furthermore, Interest Receivable (-£0.5m) is higher due to the earlier receipt of a number 
of large Government grants than originally envisaged, leading to higher cash balances on 
deposit. Redundancy and Compensation is currently running at an underspend of -£1.0m 
compared to the budget. 

50. Local taxation from retained business rates from the boroughs and districts is higher than 
the year to date budget. However the council does not yet have a complete picture on 
business rates appeals and collection rates. Therefore the forecast full year position 
assumes it to be to budget. 

51. The MTFP included an assumption that the council would receive a share of the return 
business rates top slice from the Department for Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) of +£2.4m. DCLG has now informed the council it will not receive this additional 
grant due to the large number and value of business rates appeals, especially in London. 
However, this shortfall will be offset in 2013/14 by additional grant income not included in 
the MTFP, as described above. 

52. The budget for interest payable on borrowing included a contingency of £1m to cover the 
risk of interest rate rises. Following the announcement of the Governor of the Bank of 
England on future interest rates in the UK, it is very unlikely this will be required. The 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) charge, which is the money set aside for debt 
repayment, is lower than originally estimated in the budget (£0.3m). This is due to lower 
borrowing in 2012/13. 

Revolving Infrastructure & Investment Fund 

Table 10: Summary position 

Summary 
YTD Actual 

£m 

Full Year 
Forecast 

£m 

Income -1.0 -2.2 

Expenditure 0.6 1.4 

Net revenue position -0.4 -0.8 

Capital spend 26.7 28.2 

53. The Revolving Infrastructure & Investment Fund was established in the 2013-18 MTFP in 
order to provide the revenue costs of funding initiatives that will deliver savings and 
enhance income in the longer term.  This reserve will be further enhanced by adding net 
returns achieved from investments and projects in the short-term.  Net income, after the 
deduction of funding costs, is being delivered this financial year by the Joint Venture project 
to deliver regeneration in Woking town centre (Bandstand Square) and from property 
acquisitions that have been made for future service delivery.  These are Ranger House 
(Guildford), High Street Egham and Abbey Moor in Chertsey, and the latest purchase being 
Parkside House, Epsom.  There is no change in the forecast net position reported last 
month. 

54. Capital expenditure to date includes Ranger House (£14.4m), Egham High Street (£1.8m) 
and Parkside House (£10m). The remainder of the forecast capital spend includes an 
estimate of loans to be made during the rest of the year to the Woking Bandstand Joint 
Venture company and is in line with last month’s forecast. 

7

Page 38



  Annex 

Staffing Costs 

55. The Council employs three categories of staff.  

• Contracted staff are employed on a permanent or fixed term basis and paid through the 
Council’s payroll. These staff are contracted to work full time, or part time.  

• Bank staff are contracted to the Council and paid through the payroll but have no 
guaranteed hours.  

• Agency staff are employed through an agency with which the Council has a contract.  

56. Bank and agency staff enable managers to manage short term variations in demand for 
services or vacancies for contracted staff. This is particularly the case in social care. 

57. A sensible degree of flexibility in the staffing budget is good, as it allows the Council to 
keep a portion of establishment costs variable. The current level is that approximately 92% 
of costs are due to contracted staff. 

58. The Council sets its staffing budget based upon the estimated labour required to deliver its 
services. This is expressed as budgeted full time equivalent staff (FTEs) and converted to a 
monetary amount for the budget. This budget includes spending on all three categories of 
staff and is the key control in managing expenditure on staffing. 

59. The Council’s total full year budget for staffing is £313.7m based on 8,025 budgeted FTEs.  
The year to date budget for the end of September 2013 is £156.6m and the expenditure 
incurred is £152.8m. At the end of September 2013, the Council employed 7,314 FTE 
contracted staff. 

60. Table 11 shows the staffing expenditure and FTEs for the period to September against 
budget, analysed among the three staff categories for each directorate. The table includes 
staff costs and FTEs that are recharged to other public services for example: Districts and 
Boroughs, NHS Trusts, outsourced to South East of England Councils or capital funded 
(Super Fast Broadband). The funding for the recharges is within other income. 

Table 11: Staffing costs and FTEs to end of September 2013 

  Staffing 
Budget 
to Sept 

2013 

Staffing spend by category     
Sept 2013 
occupied 

contracted   Contracted Agency 
Bank & 
Casual Total Variance Budget 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m FTE FTE 

Adult Social Care 36.6 32.1 1.8 0.8 34.7 -1.9 2,187  1,885 

Children Schools & Families 52.4 47.0 2.4 2.0 51.4 -1.0 2,690  2,442 

Customer and Communities 28.5 25.7 0.5 2.0 28.2 -0.3 1,507  1,454 

Environment & Infrastructure 11.5 10.9 0.5 0.2 11.6 0.1 524  498 

Business Services and  
Central Income & Expenditure 

27.4 24.9 1.7 0.2 26.8 -0.6 892  817 

Chief Executive’s Office 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 -0.1 225  229 

Total 156.6 140.7 6.9 5.2 152.8 -3.8 8,025 7,314 

Note: All numbers have been rounded - which might cause a casting error 

61. The most material variance is an underspend of -£0.7m in the Chief Executive’s Office 
relating to Public Health.  A number of staff did not transfer over from NHS Surrey and the 
service is currently recruiting. 

7

Page 39



  Annex 

62. Table 12 shows there are 399 “live” vacancies, for which active recruitment is currently 
taking place, with 291 of these in social care. The remaining vacancies are either filled by 
agency and bank staff on a short term basis or not being actively recruited to at present. 

Table 12: full time equivalents in post and vacancies 

 
Sept FTE 

Budget 8,025 

Occupied contracted FTE 7,314 

“Live” vacancies (i.e. actively recruiting) 399 

Vacancies not occupied by contracted FTEs 312 7

Page 40



  Annex 

Efficiencies 

63. The MTFP incorporates £68.3m of expenditure efficiencies. Overall, the Council forecasts 
achieving £63.6m by year end, an under achievement of -£4.7m. This is an increase from 
the £2.1m forecast at the end of August. The appendix to this annex includes each 
directorate’s efficiencies and a brief commentary on progress.  

Graph 1: 2013/14 ragged overall efficiencies 

 

64. The -£2.6m increase in under achievements on efficiencies is from ASC. This is largely due 
to slippage in the innovative social capital strategy as outlined under revenue budget. 

65. Under achievements in CSF (-£1.8m) and E&I (-£0.4m) remain as reported last month. 
CSF is experiencing delays in achieving the efficiencies planned in services for children 
with disabilities together with increasing demand for care packages. This means the 
planned saving in that area of £1.5m is unlikely to be achieved in 2013/14.  Given the 
pressure on the transport budget, it is also unlikely that the planned efficiency of £0.3m will 
be achieved. E&I forecasts -£0.4m underachievement on the bus service contract savings. 
Within the background appendix to this annex are each directorate’s efficiencies as at 
September 2013. Directorates have evaluated efficiencies on the following risk rating basis:  

• RED – significant or high risk of saving not being achieved, as there are barriers 
preventing the necessary actions to achieve the saving taking place. 

• AMBER - a risk of saving not being achieved as there are potential barriers preventing 
the necessary actions to achieve the saving taking place 

• GREEN – Plans in place to take the actions to achieve the saving 

• BLUE – the action has been taken to achieve the saving. 

£7.7m

£32.8m

£6.7m

£24.1m

£16.8m

£11.3m

£14.7m £17.8m

£0.0m £10.0m £20.0m £30.0m £40.0m £50.0m £60.0m £70.0m £80.0m

MTFP

Estimate One off

at Risk

Some issues

Progressing

Achieved

Estimated: £63.6m

Budget:
£68.3m

Variance:
-£4.7m

7

Page 41



  Annex 

Capital  

66. In agreeing significant capital investment as part of the MTFP for 2013-18 in February 
2013, the Council demonstrated its firm long term commitment to stimulating economic 
recovery in Surrey.  

67. The total capital programme is £699m over the five year MTFP period 2013-18. The 
Council initially approved the 2013/14 capital expenditure budget at £187.3m. 
Subsequently, Cabinet amended the budget by approving reprofiling and carry forwards 
from the 2012/13 financial year of -£32.6m in total, including -£2.5m for 2013/14. This 
decreased 2013/14’s capital budget to £184.8m. The capital budget up to 31 August 2013 
was updated for new approved schemes, re-profiling requests and new grant funded 
schemes totalling +£3.2m, drawing down capital grants for Walton Bridge (£0.6m); 
wellbeing centres (£0.1m); and external funding from sources such as schools’ parent 
teacher associations of £0.2m. In September, there is further funding from schools’ parent 
teacher associations of £0.6m and for the purchase of Woking Magistrate Court (£0.9m). 
The revised capital budget for 2013/14 is £189.8m. The budget changes are summarised in 
Table App 5. 

68. The current forecast for the service programme is a small underspend of -£9.5m (-£2.4m 
forecast at the end of August) due predominately to delays : 

• acquiring land for waste schemes (-£3.3m); 

• from archaeological finds at Guildford Fire Station (-£3.0m); 

• in deliveries of fire vehicle and equipment replacement programme (-£1.4m); 

• rephasing refurbishments some short stay schools (-£0.8m); and 

• obtaining planning permission to improve a travellers’ site (-£0.6m) and capital spend 
reduced by -£0.5m,  

These are offset by 

• increased IT equipment spend (+£0.6m) due to the revenue volume pressures. 

69. The underspend relates to project duration rather than spending savings. Therefore the 
overall capital programme will spend the same and funding is unaltered. 

70. The revised 2013/14 capital budget is in the appendix to this annex in Table App 5. 

Table 14: 2013/14 Capital expenditure position 

2013/14 Monitoring 

Revised 
Full Year 

Budget 
Apr -Sept 

actual 
Oct - Mar 

projection 
Full year 
forecast 

Full year 
variance 

  £m £m £m £m £m 

Adult Social Care 1.9 0.9 0.9 1.8 -0.1 

Children, Schools & Families 5.4 4.6 0.7 5.3 -0.1 

Customer & Communities 5.1 1.3 2.4 3.7 -1.4 

Environment & Infrastructure 58.2 40.5 17.8 58.3 0.1 

School Basic Need 54.3 26.1 28.2 54.3 0.0 

Business Services 53.4 17.3 28.1 45.4 -8.0 

Chief Executive Office 11.5 1.0 10.5 11.5 0.0 

Service programme 189.8 91.7 88.6 180.3 -9.5 

Long term investments 0.0 26.1 2.1 28.2 28.2 

Overall programme 189.8 117.8 90.7 208.5 18.7 

7

Page 42



  Annex 

Balance sheet 

71. The Council’s balance sheet as at 30 Sep 2013 shows an increase in net assets of £74m. 
This is due to a decrease in long term liabilities due to the repayment of loans from the 
PWLB and an increase in cash & cash equivalents due to receipt of the majority of the 
annual Revenue Support Grant in quarter 1. In addition, the value of the Council’s long-
term assets has increased due to the capital expenditure to date, however this is partially 
offset by both depreciation and the removal of 12 schools from the balance sheet due to 
them converting to academy status. 

72. Table App 6 shows details of the balance sheet at 30 September 2013. 

Reserves 

73. The Council’s earmarked reserves had reduced by £14.5m by 30 September. This was 
mainly due to drawing £18.9m from the Budget Equalisation Reserve as planned in the 
MTFP. In addition, £5m was approved to be drawn down from the Severe Weather 
Reserve in July.  This is partly offset by appropriations to the Economic Downturn Reserve 
and the Revolving Infrastructure & Investment Fund and capital receipts received in year. 

74. Table App 7 shows details of the Council’s earmarked reserves as at 30 September 2013. 

Debt 

75. During the second quarter of 2013/14 the Accounts Payable team raised invoices totalling 
£42.6m (in total £84.1m).  

76. The Council’s total debt outstanding at 30 September 2013 is £27.5m, comprising £17.1m 
care related debt and £10.4m non-care related debt. Table App 8 shows details. The 
average number of debtor days for the period 1 April to 30 September 2013 was 30 days. 

77. Of the £27.5m total debt outstanding, £10.7m is overdue. Table App 9 shows details. 
Systems, restructure and overall economic factors may have played a part in this and more 
specifically during the last quarter of 2012/13 the Council identified new income that was 
previously uncharged. This generated high value retrospective bills that clients have been 
reluctant to pay. The Council is addressing the issue using a Rapid Improvement Event. 

78. Between 1 April and 30 September 2013 the Chief Finance Officer, under delegated 
authority, has written off 224 debts with a total value of £441,266. Of these £362,796 is 
care related and £78,470 is non care related debt. 

 

7

Page 43



  Appendix 

Appendix to Annex 

 

Contents 

Efficiencies & service reductions 

Updated Budget - Revenue 

Updated Budget - Capital 

Balance sheet 

Earmarked reserves 

Debt 

 

 

  

7

Page 44



  Appendix 

Efficiencies & service reductions 

App. 1. The graphs of directorate efficiencies & service reductions below track progress 
against directorates’ MTFP ragged expenditure efficiencies & service reductions. 

App. 2. All the graphs use the same legend:  
Red – At risk, Amber – Some issues, Green – Progressing and Blue – Achieved.  
Each graph is based on the appropriate scale and therefore they are not directly 
comparable one against another. 

Adult Social Care 

 

App. 3. The directorate has already achieved savings of £8.5m this year, including £5.2m of 
savings to constrain inflation for individually commissioned care services.  A further 
£20.6m is on target to be achieved, although there is an element of risk for £8.7m of 
these savings.  The most significant element of ASC’s savings plans in 2013/14 is the 
social capital strategy, which has a £15.5m savings target.  Given the scale of the 
challenge and that this is the first year of these ambitious plans, slippage was 
highlighted as a risk and the September position indicates slippage has occurred, 
with £6.5m of social capital savings currently forecast against the £15.5m target.  The 
projected social capital slippage combined with minor slippage against other savings 
plans is being largely offset by £7.7m of unplanned one-off savings, which will need 
to be replaced by new savings plans in 2014/15.  The main one-off savings measure 
is the intended draw down of £7.5m of unused 2011/12 Whole Systems funding set 
aside by the directorate as a contingency for this year’s budget.  This draw down is 
pending Cabinet approval, which is being sought in this month’s monitoring cycle and 
is required in order to constrain the overall shortfall on MTFP efficiencies to the £2.6m 
currently forecast. 

£7.7m

£28.7m

£6.5m

£14.2m

£8.7m

£3.0m

£11.9m £8.5m

£0.0m £5.0m £10.0m £15.0m £20.0m £25.0m £30.0m £35.0m £40.0m £45.0m £50.0m

MTFP

Estimate

One off at Risk Some issues Progressing Achieved

£45.9m 

£43.2m 

7

Page 45



  Appendix 

Children, Schools & Families 

 

App. 4. The forecast budget position for CSF means that two of the planned efficiencies are 
unlikely to be achieved. Delays in achieving  the efficiencies planned in services for 
children with disabilities together with increasing demand for care packages, as 
described above, mean that the planned saving of £1.5m is unlikely to be fully 
achieved in 2013/14.  

App. 5. Also, given the pressure on the transport budget the planned efficiency of £0.3m will 
not be achieved. 

Customer & Communities 

 

App. 6. The efficiencies summary shows an over-achievement of +£0.1m against the 2013/14 
target of £1.7m.  This is due to the early achievement of the 2014/15 Directorate 
Support staff saving.  Actions to achieve the 2013/14 efficiencies have already been 
completed.   

£4.1m £3.2m

£5.5m

£2.4m

£0.5m £1.9m

£0.0m £2.0m £4.0m £6.0m £8.0m £10.0m £12.0m

MTFP

Estimate

at Risk Some issues Progressing Achieved

£1.7m

£1.8m

£0.0m £0.2m £0.4m £0.6m £0.8m £1.0m £1.2m £1.4m £1.6m £1.8m £2.0m

MTFP

Estimate

at Risk Some issues Progressing Achieved

£7.9m 

£9.7m 

£1.8m 

£1.7m 

7

Page 46



  Appendix 

Environment & Infrastructure 

 

 

App. 7. The directorate currently expects to deliver all efficiency savings, except bus service 
contract savings (£0.4m).  A number of risks remain and in some cases detailed 
plans are still in development.  Some savings, including one off savings from parking 
income, have already been achieved. 

Business Services 

 

App. 8. The efficiencies identified in the MTFP are on track to be realised, all savings have 
been reviewed and plans are in place to achieve them and the risk of achievement 
has been appropriately adjusted. The efficiency in corporate training of £0.4m may 
not be fully realised, however the service is working to achieve its target. 

£2.2m

£1.2m

£1.0m

£1.4m £0.2m

£0.0m £0.5m £1.0m £1.5m £2.0m £2.5m £3.0m £3.5m

MTFP

Estimate

at Risk Some issues Progressing Achieved

£3.1m

£0.4m £1.0m £1.7m

£0.0m £0.5m £1.0m £1.5m £2.0m £2.5m £3.0m £3.5m

MTFP

Estimate

at Risk Some issues Progressing Achieved

£2.8m 

£3.2m 

£3.1m 

£3.1m 

7

Page 47



  Appendix 

Chief Executive’s Office 

 

App. 9. The planned 2013/14 efficiencies have been achieved.  The Directorate is currently 
holding vacancies within Policy & Performance in preparation for achieving efficiency 
savings for 2014/15 and will review these during the year to establish the on-going 
effect. 

Central Income & Expenditure 

 

App. 10. The efficiencies identified in the MTFP in relation to changes to the council’s treasury 
management strategy have been achieved. The efficiencies expected from changing 
the compensation scheme for service reorganisations is on track to be realised but 
the risks remain while service continue to reorganise to meet their savings targets.  

£0.2m

£0.2m

£0.00m £0.05m £0.10m £0.15m £0.20m

MTFP

Estimate

at Risk Some issues Progressing Achieved

£1.4m

£0.9m

£3.1m

£3.6m

£0.0m £0.5m £1.0m £1.5m £2.0m £2.5m £3.0m £3.5m £4.0m £4.5m £5.0m

MTFP

Estimate

at Risk Some issues Progressing Achieved

£0.2m 

£0.2m 

£4.5m 

£4.5m 

7

Page 48



  Appendix 

Updated Budget - Revenue 

App. 11. The Council’s 2013/14 revenue expenditure budget was initially approved at 
£1,685.3m. Subsequently Cabinet approved the use of reserves built up in 2012/13 to 
augment this. Adding virement changes in May to August increased the expenditure 
budget at the end of August to £1,708.8m. In September, a number of virements 
reprofiled the income & expenditure budgets, reducing both by £15.2m. Table App 1 
summarises these changes. 

Table App 1: Movement of 2013/14 revenue expenditure budget 

  Income Expenditure 
Earmarked 

reserves 
General 

balances Total 
Number of 
Virements 

  £m £m   £m £m   

Original MTFP -1,662.3 1,685.2 -11.0 -11.9 0.0   

Q1  changes -2.3 11.1 -8.8   0.0 72 

July & August changes -7.5 12.5 -5.0     82 

Previous changes -1,672.1 1,708.8 -24.8 -11.9 0.0 154 

September changes             

Academy conversion to Sept13 - 
budget and grant reduction 

18.6 -18.6     0.0 1 

Addtl grants: PE & Sports Grant; PE 
Teacher Release Grant; School 
Direct Teacher Training Grant; Govt 
grants to schools;  

-2.5 2.5     0.0 1 

Transfer of income element of CHC 
Cashable Savings 2013/4 target, 
previously saving only allocated 
against expenditure 

-1.1 1.1     0.0 1 

Transfer of DSG carry forward as 
agreed by Schools Forum 

0.1 -0.1     0.0 1 

Transfer of income and expenditure 0.1 -0.1     0.0 28 

September changes 15.2 -15.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 32 

Updated Budget - September 2013 -1,656.9 1,693.6 -24.8 -11.9 0.0 186 

App. 12. When the Council agreed the 2013-2018 MTFP in February 2013, some government 
departments had not determined the final amount for a number of grants. Services 
therefore estimated their likely grant. The general principle agreed by Cabinet was 
that any changes in the final amounts, whether higher or lower, would be represented 
in the service’s income and expenditure budget. There were a number of changes for 
September for example the notification of the schools transferring to Academy status. 

App. 13. In controlling the budget during the year, budget managers are occasionally required 
to transfer, or vire, budgets from one area to another. In most cases these are 
administrative or technical in nature, or of a value that is approved by the Chief 
Finance Officer. Virements above £250,000 require the approval of the Cabinet 
Member. There were three virements above this amount in September. 

App. 14. Virements above £250,000, to: 

a) transfer of £18.6m back to the Department for education for Academy status 
school since April to September; 

b) notification of further educational government grants of £2.5m; and 

c) transfer of £1.1m of income element of Continuing Health Care (CHC) Cashable 
Savings 2013/4 target. 

7

Page 49



  Appendix 

App. 15. Table App 2 shows the updated revenue budget that includes the changes in 
government grants and virements since the beginning of the year: 

Table App 2: 2013/14 updated revenue budget – September 2013 

 
Income Expenditure Net budget 

  £m £m £m 

Adult Social Care -68.7 406.8 338.1 

Children, Schools and Families -150.8 330.1 179.3 

Schools -505.4 505.5 0.1 

Customers and Communities -24.0 84.0 60.0 

Environment and Infrastructure -18.7 150.6 131.9 

Business Services -14.7 97.9 83.2 

Chief Executive's Office -28.4 44.4 16.0 

Central Income / Exp -846.1 36.5 -809.6 

Service total -1,656.9 1,655.8 -1.1 

Risk Contingency 13.0 13.0 

Total -1,656.9 1,668.8 11.9 

Note: All numbers have been rounded - which might cause a casting error 

App. 16. Table App 3 shows the year to date and forecast year end gross revenue position 
supported by general balances. 

Table App 3: 2013/14 Revenue budget forecast position as at end of September 2013 

YTD 
Budget 

Year to 
date 

Actual 
YTD  

Variance 
Full Year 
Budget 

Remaining 
Forecast 

Spend 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Forecast 
Variance 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Income: 

Local taxation  -304.0 -305.0 -1.0 -599.3 -294.3 -599.3 0.0 

Government grants -533.4 -530.8 2.6 -905.1 -387.9 -918.7 -13.6 

Other income -81.0 -85.8 -4.8 -152.5 -68.9 -154.7 -2.2 

Income -918.4 -921.6 -3.2 -1,656.9 -751.1 -1,672.7 -15.8 

Expenditure: 
 Staffing 156.6 152.8 -3.8 313.7 157.6 310.4 -3.3 

Service provision 405.6 397.7 -7.9 849.7 457.2 854.3 4.6 

Non schools sub-total 562.2 550.5 -11.7 1,163.4 614.8 1,164.7 1.3 

Schools expenditure 262.8 262.9 0.1 505.5 242.6 505.5 0.0 

Total expenditure 825.0 813.4 -11.6 1,668.8 857.4 1,670.2 1.3 

Movement in 
balances 

-93.4 -108.2 -14.8 11.9 106.3 -2.5 -14.4 

Note: All numbers have been rounded - which might cause a casting error 

7

Page 50



  Appendix 

App. 17. Table App 4 shows the year to date and forecast year end net revenue position for 
services and overall.  Net revenue position for services is gross expenditure less 
income from specific grants plus fees, charges and reimbursements. 

Table App 4: 2013/14 Revenue budget - net positions by directorate 

August's 
forecast 
variance 

£m 
Directorate 
 

YTD 
budget 

£m 

YTD 
actual 

£m 

YTD 
variance 

£m 

Full year 
(revised) 
budget 

£m 

Oct – Mar 
remaining 
forecast 

£m 

Full year 
forecast 

£m 

Full year 
variance 

£m 

0.0 Adult Social Care 169.1 174.7 5.6 338.1 166.0 340.7 2.6 

1.7 Children, Schools & 
Families 

87.8 85.7 -2.1 179.3 94.3 180.0 0.7 

0.0 Schools  
(gross exp £505.5m) 

0.1 -3.5 -3.6 0.1 3.6 0.1 0.0 

-0.2 Customer & Communities 30.5 28.5 -2.0 60.0 31.2 59.7 -0.3 

1.1 Environment & 
Infrastructure 

61.4 59.2 -2.2 131.9 73.5 132.7 0.8 

-0.4 Business Services 39.3 36.2 -3.1 83.2 44.5 80.7 -2.5 

-0.2 Chief Executive’s Office 9.0 8.9 -0.1 16.0 7.1 16.0 0.0 

-1.4 Central Income & 
Expenditure 

-186.6 -192.5 -5.9 -210.3 -20.6 -213.1 -2.8 

0.6 Service net budget 210.6 197.2 -13.4 598.2 399.6 596.8 -1.4 

0.0 Local taxation -304.0 -305.0 -1.0 -599.3 -294.3 -599.3 0.0 

0.0 Revolving Infrastructure & 
Investment Fund 

0.0 -0.4 -0.4 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 

-13.0 Risk contingency  0.0 0.0 0.0 13.0 0.0 0.0 -13.0 

-12.4 Overall net budget -93.4 -108.2 -14.8 11.9 105.7 -2.5 -14.4 

Note: All numbers have been rounded - which might cause a casting error 

Updated Budget - Capital 

App. 18. The Council initially approved the 2013/14 capital expenditure budget at £187.3m. 
Subsequently, Cabinet amended the budget by approving reprofiling and carry 
forwards (-£32.6m in total, -£2.5m for 2013/14) from 2012/13. This decreased 
2013/14’s capital budget to £184.8m. 

App. 19. New virements and reprofiling in May – August added £3.5m to the capital budget. 
There are small changes to the capital budget totalling £1.5m, increasing the capital 
budget to £189.8m.  There were two changes over £0.25m: purchase of Woking 
Magistrates Court as approved by Cabinet - £0.8m.  The residual £0.6m amasses 
from small changes for capital grant drawdown for wellbeing centres and external 
funding for schools (i.e. parent teacher associations). 

App. 20. These changes are summarised in Table App 5. 

Table App 5: Movement of 2013/14 capital expenditure budget 

2013/14 Monitoring 
MTFP Budget  

£m 

C/fwd and 
reprofiled budget  

£m 

Budget 
virement   

£m 

Revised full 
year budget   

£m 

Adult Social Care  1.3 0.4 0.2 1.9 

Children, Schools & Families  2.8 1.6 1.0 5.4 

Customer & Communities  2.0 3.1 0.0 5.1 

Environment & Infrastructure  50.1 4.3 3.8 58.2 

Business Services  50.5 0.6 2.3 53.4 

Schools’ Basic Need  69.2 -14.9 0.0 54.3 

Chief Executive’s Office  11.5 0.0 0.0 11.5 

Total overall  187.4 -4.9 7.3 189.8 

7

Page 51



  Appendix 

Balance sheet 

Table App 6: Balance sheet 

As at 
31.03.2012 

As at 
31.03.2013 

As at 
30.09.2013 

£m £m £m 

1,257.8 1,280.0 Property, plant & equipment 1,247.8 

0.7 0.7 Heritage assets 0.7 

  Investment property 25.3 

7.1 5.9 Intangible assets 4.7 

0.2 0.2 Long term investments 0.2 

0.5 8.8 Long term debtors 9.4 

1,266.3 1,295.6 LONG TERM ASSETS 1,288.1 

    
  Short term:  

100.0 104.1 Investments 96.7 

0.1 0.1 Intangible assets 0.1 

4.6 15.3 Assets held for sale 15.3 

1.4 1.3 Inventories 0.8 

100.8 141.5 Short term debtors 120 

109.8 114.1 Cash & cash equivalents 152.5 

316.7 376.4 CURRENT ASSETS 385.4 

    

  Short term:  
-15.1 -82.1 Borrowing -90.1 

-195.0 -234.3 Creditors -213.6 

-2.6 -3.3 Provisions -2.0 

-0.2 -0.2 Revenue grants - receipts in advance -0.2 

-1.2 -0.6 Capital grants - receipts in advance -0.6 

-214.1 -320.5 CURRENT LIABILITIES -306.5 

    
-7.9 -7.2 Provisions -7.2 

-306.2 -238.1 Long term borrowing -170.0 

-984.5 -1,145.4 Other long term liabilities -1,154.5 

-1298.6 -1,390.7 LONG TERM LIABILITIES -1,331.7 

       

70.3 -39.2 NET ASSETS 35.3 

    
-269.1 -288.4 Usable reserves 

(eg: general balances, earmarked 
reserves) 

-400.3 

198.9 327.6 Unusable reserves 
(eg: pension, capital & revaluation 
reserves) 

365.0 

-70.2 39.2 
 

-35.3 

7

Page 52



  Appendix 

Earmarked reserves 

Table App 7: Earmarked reserves 

Earmarked revenue reserves 

Opening 
balance 

1 Apr 2013 
£m 

Actual 
movement to 
30 Sep 2013 

£m 

Projected net 
movement to 

31 Mar 2014 
£m 

Projected 
balance at 

31 Mar 2014 
£m 

Investment renewals reserve -13.3 0.1 5.3 -7.9 

Equipment replacement reserve -3.1 0.3 0.0 -2.8 

Vehicle replacement reserve -5.1 -0.4 1.7 -3.8 

Waste sites contingency reserve -0.3 -0.3 

Budget equalisation reserve -24.9 18.8 0.0 -6.1 

Financial investments reserve -1.6 -1.6 

Street lighting PFI reserve -5.8 -0.4 -6.2 

Insurance reserve -7.5 -0.7 0.3 -7.9 

Severe weather reserve -5.0 5.0 0.0 

Eco park sinking fund -8.0 -8.0 

Revolving Investment & Infrastructure Fund -14.5 -5.0 -0.8 -20.3 

Child Protection Reserve -3.6 0.4 1.0 -2.2 

Interest Rate Reserve -3.2 -0.5 -3.7 

Economic Downturn Reserve -4.4 -1.6   -6.0 

Total earmarked revenue reserves -100.3 16.0 7.5 -76.8 

Capital Reserves 
    General capital reserve -7.6 6.2 -1.4 

Capital Receipts Reserve -17.3 -1.6 -9.6 -28.5 

Total earmarked capital reserves -24.9 -1.6 -3.4 -29.9 

 

7

Page 53



  Appendix 

Debt 

App. 21. During the second quarter of 2013/14 the Accounts Payable team raised invoices 
totalling £42.6m, making a total of £83.6m for the year to date. 

App. 22. Table App 8 shows the age profile of the Council’s care, and non-care related debt. 

Table App 8: Further information on debts 

Account Group 

<1 Month 
2-12 

Months 
1-2 

Years +2 years Total 
Overdue 

Debt  

£m £m £m £m £m £m 

Care debt - unsecured 3.5 2.5 1.2 2.9 10.1 6.6 

Care debt - secured 0.4 2.5 1.4 2.7 7.0   

Total Care 3.9 5.0 2.5 5.6 17.1 6.6 

General debt  6.0 3.2 0.4 0.4 10.1 4.0 

Property 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.1 

Total Non-care Debt 6.1 3.3 0.4 0.4 10.4 4.1 

Total Debt 10.0 8.3 2.9 6.0 27.5 10.7 

App. 23. The amount still outstanding of these invoices was £27.5m of gross debt at 30 
September 2013. The gross debt is adjusted to take into account those balances not 
immediately due (i.e. less than 30 days old), or collectable (i.e. secured on property). 
This produces the figures for net debt, which is shown in Table App 9. 

Table App 9 –Overdue debt summary as at 30 September 2013 

  
2013/14 

Q2 
2012/13 

Q2 
2012/13 

Q4 
2011/12 

Q4 
2010/11 

Q4 
2009/10 

Q4 

 
£m £m £m £m £m £m 

Care Related Debt 6.6 6.1 7.6 6.1 6.8 6.1 

Non Care related debt 4.1 3.0 3.8 3.0 3.9 3.6 

Total 10.7 9.1 11.4 9.1 10.7 9.7 

App. 24. The increase in care debt outstanding was a concern and is being addressed by a 
Rapid Improvement Event (RIE). Systems, restructure and overall economic factors 
may have played a part in this, and more specifically during the last quarter of the 
2012/13 financial year the SWIFT reconciliation process identified new income for the 
Council that was previously uncharged.  From a debt recovery perspective clients 
were reluctant to pay high value retrospective bills resulting in an increase in the 
value of outstanding debt.  

App. 25. Non care debt that is within the two and six months old category has risen sharply 
over the last three months. This is due to the Clinical Commissioning Groups that 
were formed on 1 April this year and it is currently taking longer to reach agreement 
with the new management. Senior officers from the council are working closely with 
their colleagues in the CCGs to resolve these issues.  

App. 26. The council’s debt policy includes a target of 30 days to collect non-care debt. The 
average number of debtor days for the period 1 April to 30 September 2013 was 30 
days. 

App. 27. The Chief Finance Officer has delegated authority to write off irrecoverable debts in 
line with financial regulations. This quarter (Q2 2013/14), 84 such debts have been 
written off with a total value of £163,593, of which £147,440 is care related and 
£16,153 is non care related debt. Together with the first quarter, 224 such debts have 
been written off with a total value of £441,266, of which £362,796 is care related and 
£78,470 is non care related debt. 

7

Page 54



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

  

 
 
 

Council Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
7 November 2013 

Improving Staff Morale and Wellbeing 

 

 
The purpose of this report is to understand how we can find out how staff are 
feeling and what everyone can do to improve staff morale. The activities listed 
in this summary report are being developed as part of our People Strategy 
2013 – 2018. The recently refreshed strategy emphasises the ways we are 
nurturing, supporting and equipping our people to meet the council’s vision to 
deliver great value for Surrey residents. 

 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1. Employee Morale Definition 

 
The emotions, attitude, optimism, satisfaction and overall outlook of 
employees - the spirit of an organisation's workforce; it influences how 
successful an organisation becomes. Belief in self and belief in their 
organisation are both important factors in positive employee morale. 
 

1.2. Factors that can contribute to positive employee morale include, 
but are not limited to: 

• Supportive and effective leadership and management  

• Empowering employees to take responsibility 

• Treating employees with respect 

• Providing regular employee recognition 

• Offering open and regular communication about factors important to 
employees 

• Providing feedback and coaching 

• Offering good employee benefits  

 
 
 
 
 

8

Item 8

Page 55



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

  

 
2. STAFF SURVEY 

 
2.1. How do we know how staff are feeling? 

Every two years we survey staff attitudes via a full employee survey. 
We also carry out regular employee “temperature check” surveys in 
between. 

2.2. What are the top three results from the staff last survey? 

• I have a say in how I do my work 

• I am treated with fairness and respect  

• Communications during change 

All of these are higher than the Mori top ten 

2.2.1. What did the Peer Review say? 

“The general level of staff commitment, enthusiasm, pride and 
talent in the council is notable. The cultural changes that have 
been brought about have clearly motivated people and 
generated an atmosphere of enthusiasm, coupled with 
significant goodwill. Most of the staff that we met indicated they 
now feel much more empowered and able to ‘get on and deliver’ 
and people spoke of having regained a sense of pride about 
working for the council.” 

2.3. What are the areas for improvement from the Staff Survey? 
 

• I feel I can influence change 

• I have experienced bullying and harassment 

2.3.1. What did the Peer Review Say? 

“The financial climate, with the need that it has generated for savings to 
be made, has inevitably impacted negatively on some individuals in the 
authority, although the number of compulsory redundancies has been 
limited to around 150 in recent years” 

And  

“Whilst major culture change has been delivered and leadership and 
management of the organisation are strong, the council recognises that 
elements of the old culture still prevail in some areas” 

 
3. WHAT IS IN PLACE TO HELP IMPROVE STAFF MORALE? 

 
3.1. The People Strategy 

  
3.1.1. The People Strategy is harnessing a passion for public services, 

developing great leadership throughout the Council and 

8

Page 56



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

  

establishing a “one team” approach with all our people.  There 
are four main areas of focus within the strategy:- 

 

• Living our Values 

• Wellbeing and Inclusion 

• Nurturing Talent 

• Reward and Recognition 

3.2. Leadership 
 

3.2.1. The introduction of the Higher Performance Development 
Programme for all Managers in November 2013. This includes a 
four day Raising and Sustaining Higher Performance workshop 
and the 'Team Talks' process which will focus on supporting 
managers to have difficult conversations and raise staff morale. 

 
3.3. Training & Development 

 
3.3.1. We encourage staff who have attended our in-house coaching 

programmes to join the coaching pool to increase the number of 
trained coaches available to support staff.  
 

3.3.2. STARS training courses are more flexible and accessible for all 
staff. More opportunities for e-Learning, Masterclasses and 
LiteBites have been introduced to facilitate attendance and 
relieve workload pressures associated with time out of the office 
for training.  
 

3.3.3. Career progression help is available through a set of tools and 
resources to enable staff to plan their careers. Of the five job 
families we have launched career progression in Business 
Functions and Personal & Social Well-being. 
 

3.3.4. IT skills assessments are being completed to provide tailored IT 
support for staff to develop the IT skills they need for their role. 

 
3.4. Engagement 

 
3.4.1. Open and honest relationships with the trade unions and staff 

engagement groups.  We encourage a high level of trust and 
confidence.  
 

3.4.2. Appraisal system and processes to include our values.  The 
recording process will be easier to complete so we can target 
support to managers where completion numbers are low. 
 
 
 
 
 

8

Page 57



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

  

3.5. Empowerment 
 
3.5.1. New policies to support staff in resolving issues. A restorative 

approach is being introduced to establish an improved method of 
resolving differences at work. 
 

3.6. Employee Benefits 
 

3.6.1. Our purchasing power as a large local authority has been 
maximised and 6,000 people have signed up to take advantage 
of the savings and discounts available. These benefits are being 
extended to include support for staff when purchasing a new 
property or car. 

 
3.7. Well-being 
 

3.7.1. Redundancies have been minimised through a comprehensive 
redeployment service. The number of redundancies was kept 
relatively low (approximately 100 per year) during the Public 
Value Review programme. 
 

3.7.2. We are prioritising the health and well-being of our people. For 
example, the Stay Healthy - Stay Well campaign was launched 
in August 2013 with the offer of 512 free, on-site, NHS Health 
Checks at 6 main area office buildings. Over 600 staff have 
booked appointments or subscribed. 

 
3.7.3. Team Conversations - working in partnership with UNISON, the 

workplace Health Checks are being delivered in Adult Social 
Care. Also, team Wellbeing Conversations are being delivered.  
An organisation wide team conversations toolkit is being 
developed.   
 

3.7.4. Stoptober - on-site smoking cessation sessions with a specialist 
advisor were launched on 30 September 2013.  
 

3.7.5. Stress - a self-evaluation questionnaire for all staff is being 
designed and 24 management master classes on stress and 
mental health in the workplace are in development. 

 
This report is for information and compliments the priorities in the People 
Strategy 2013 – 2018.  A further update on these initiatives will be provided in 
6 months. 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Report contact: Carmel Millar, Head of HR&OD, Business Services. 
 
Contact details:  020 8541 9824/carmel.millar@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
 

8

Page 58


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 3 OCTOBER 2013
	5 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE SELECT COMMITTEE
	6 RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	Recommendation Tracker - November2013
	Forward Work Programme- November 2013

	7 BUDGET MONITORING - SEPTEMBER 2013
	Budget Monitoring - Cabinet Cover Report - 22 October 2013
	Budget Monitoring - September 2013 - Annex 1 and Appendix

	8 IMPROVING STAFF MORALE AND WELLBEING

